
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 3 November 2009 - 5:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Dagenham 

 
Members: Councillor L A Smith (Chair); Councillor R C Little (Deputy Chair); Councillor 
J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor S Carroll, Councillor H J Collins, 
Councillor R Gill, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor Mrs V Rush and Councillor P T 
Waker 
 
 
Date of publication: 23 October 2009       R. A. Whiteman 
           Chief Executive 
 

Contact Officer: Tina Robinson 
Tel. 020 8227 3285 

Minicom: 020 8227 5755 
E-mail: tina.robinson@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declaration of Members' Interests   
 
 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare 

any personal or prejudicial interest they may have in any matter which is to be 
considered at this meeting.  
 

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 20 
October 2009 (Pages 1 - 2)  

 
4. Response to Green Paper - 'Shaping the Future of Care Together' (Pages 

3 - 13)  
 
5. Local Development Framework - Residential Extensions and Alterations 

Draft Supplementary Planning Document (Pages 15 - 45)  
 
6. 2010/11 Local Implementation Plan - Funding Submission (Pages 47 - 70)  
 
7. Pre-Tender Report - Procurement and Management of Temporary 

Accommodation (Private Sector Licensing) for Homeless People (Pages 
71 - 77)  

 
8. Council Debt Write-Offs -  July 2009 to September 2009 (2nd Quarter) 

(Pages 79 - 89)  
 



 

 

9. Parking Services IT Solution Replacement (to follow)   
 
10. Award of Contract for Construction of Skills Centre (to follow)   
 
11. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
12. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 
Private Business 

 
The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended).   

 
13. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 20 October 2009 
(5:00  - 5:07 pm)  

  
Present: Councillor L A Smith (Chair), Councillor R C Little (Deputy Chair), 
Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor S Carroll and 
Councillor R Gill 
 
Apologies: Councillor H J Collins, Councillor M A McCarthy and Councillor Mrs V 
Rush 
 

68. Declaration of Members' Interests 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

 
69. Minutes (29 September 2009) 
 
 Agreed. 

 
70. Corporate Performance Report - October 2009 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Resources on performance 

information from across the Council to October 2009, the aim being to assess how 
well the Council’s services are being delivered and what needs to change or adjust 
in order to further improve these services. 
 
Agreed to the actions as set out in the report in order to assist the Council to 
achieve all its Community Priorities and to note: 
 
(i) The areas of good performance and areas for improvement across the 

Council with regard to National Indicators;  
 
(ii) The Audit Commission will provide feedback to the Council on its 

Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) within the next month: and, 
 
(iii) Improvements made in regard to customer contact / response times and 

the information on complaints. 
 

71. Budget Monitoring 2009/10 - April to August 2009 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Resources providing an update 

on the Council’s revenue and capital position for the period April to August of the 
2009/10 financial year. 
 
The current forecast for revenue expenditure across the Council has identified that 
all departments are projecting in-year pressures amounting to £4m (Adults and 
Community Services £1m, Children’s Services £1.1m, Customer Services £0.8m 
and Resources £1.1 m).  The most significant areas of pressures relate to 
expenditure on transition arrangements within the Adult Services Learning 
Disability, transport services for children with Special Educational Needs (SEN), 
Looked after Children Placements and in meeting the Council’s Leaving Care 
responsibilities, the Barking and Dagenham Direct service and income generation. 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



 
A recovery plan has been compiled with a view to eliminating these projected 
overspends and, following consideration by the Corporate Management Team, the 
agreed actions will be reported back to the Executive.   
 
Agreed, in order to assist the Council to achieve all of its Community Priorities and 
as a matter of good financial practice, to: 
 
(i) Note the current position of the Council’s revenue and capital budget as at 

31 August 2009; 
 
(ii) Note the position for the Housing Revenue Account; 
 
(iii) The use of contingency budget to fund the pressures within the Resources 

department as set out in the report; 
 
(iv) The virement within the Resources department’s budget to increase 

Employees and Supplies budgets by £300,000 and £100,000 respectively 
and increase the Income budget by £400,000; and, 

 
(v) A budget adjustment of £250,000 from the set aside IT reserve to fund the 

systems development work within the Finance service.  
 

72. Private Business 
 
 Agreed to exclude the public and press for the remainder of the meeting by 

reason of the nature of the business to be discussed which included information 
exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 

73. * Staffing Matters 
 
 Received a report from the Chief Executive in respect of the Council’s vacant 

statutory Chief Financial Officer post. 
 
Agreed to assist the Council in its preparations for meeting the public sector 
expenditure challenges in the years ahead, to: 
 
(i) The post of the Council’s Chief Financial Officer being recruited to at chief 

officer level; 
 
(ii) Authorise the Chief Executive, subject to appropriate consultations, to 

finalise arrangements such as post title prior to recruitment; 
 
(iii) Note the costs associated with this proposal will be £20,000 and met from 

existing budgets; 
 
(iv) Note the general comments relating to the Council’s organisational 

structure. 
 
(* The Chair agreed that this issue could be considered at the meeting under the 
provisions of section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.) 
 

Page 2



EXECUTIVE 
 

3 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF ADULT AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
 
Title: Response to Green Paper, ‘Shaping the Future of 
Care Together’  
 

For Decision 
 

Summary:  
 
The Government has published ‘Shaping the Future of Care Together’, so beginning the 
first ever national debate on the reform of adult care and support in England – the Big 
Care Debate.  The document sets out a vision for a National Care Service, the options 
for reform and how the new system could be organised and paid for.  The paper is one 
of the most important documents on proposals for the reshaping of social care produced 
in many years.  It has implications for the future funding of social care and benefits and 
in addition may have a financial impact on how the resourcing of social care is managed, 
including the control of the local authority over its budget.  The Government is currently 
inviting comments on the reform options and views on which options respondents would 
like to see adopted.  
 
The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham have welcomed the debate on care and 
support and the elements of the National Care Service.  However, there is a consensus 
that none of the funding options provide an acceptable solution to finding the necessary 
financial contributions for the new system.   
 
Wards Affected: All 
Recommendation 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree the Council’s response to the Green Paper to 
be submitted to the Department of Health, as proposed in section 2 of this report.  

Reason(s) 
 
The Green Paper is one of the most important documents in reshaping social care 
produced for many years.  The borough has canvassed the views of residents, 
Councillors and people who work in care and support services.  This report outlines 
these views and will be used as a basis for the submission to the Department of Health 
to help inform any legislation that follows.  
 
Implications 
 
Financial 
The Financial Implications of the Care Green Paper and options being considered are 
detailed in Appendix A (Section 6).  
 
In summary:  
What is clear is the Council’s role in funding Social Care within a new National Care 
Service is likely to change.  There is a wide acknowledgement that there is not enough 
money to meet current and future care needs, with various alarming statistics being 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 3



produced by all interested parties, including one projection that an extra 1.7m adults will 
need care services by 2026.  
 
The Green Paper refers several times to difficult questions about funding, but does not 
specifically refer to additional government funding.  This can only mean an increased 
burden may fall on Service Users, and Council’s, especially in areas of relative low 
wealth.  The Green Paper also proposes making better use of existing funding in the 
system including disability benefits such as Attendance Allowance.  This could mitigate 
the potential financial burden for Councils, but will no doubt prove hugely unpopular with 
recipients.   
 
The Government has considered five different funding models and ruled out two, namely 
a complete taxpayer funded service and no taxpayer help at all.  The remaining three 
options are all means of combining government funding and individual service user 
contributions.  
 
A Partnership Funding Model could see the Government provide between a quarter and 
third of the cost of care.  The average care costs through retirement amount to 
approximately £30,000.  The state may therefore cover up to £10,000 of Care costs.   
 
A Partnership Plus Insurance Model could see the Government enabling pensioners to 
top up their Government aid by opting into a non-compulsory insurance scheme 
(Insurance contribution estimated at £25,000).    
 
A third model proposes a Comprehensive System whereby everybody would be required 
to contribute around £20,000 to a state insurance scheme and all would have their care 
fully provided.  There could be flexibility in the way this sum is paid, including ultimately 
deferring payments until properties are sold after death in some cases.  This option of 
delaying any payment until after death would have financial implications for Councils.   
It remains to be seen whether any additional financial support would be provided to 
Councils to mitigate this.   
 
Care Services Minister Phil Hope has said all three models could be funded using 
existing Social Care and disability benefit budgets.  The Green paper proposes splitting 
off accommodation and food costs from care costs in residential homes, with only the 
latter being funded under the National Care Service.  
 
Legal 
The current care system is based largely on the National Assistance Act 1948.  The 
Green Paper, ‘Shaping the Future of Care Together’ is a consultation document based 
on the Governments White Paper on the reform of adult care and support in England.  
The Council’s response to the consultation document is contained in this report.  During 
the preparation of the response legal advice from the Acting Legal Partner Safeguarding 
and Partnerships has been sought and incorporated into the report. 
 
Contractual 
No specific implications 
 
Risk Management 
Financial risks are clearly apparent in any change to a system that is perceived to be 
under-funded, especially in times of such harsh economic reality.   
 

Page 4



 
 
 
Staffing 
The Green Paper does not address the issue of who provides the care that people are 
going to need, so staffing implications are unclear at this moment in time.   
 
Customer Impact 
The potential customer impact of the proposals is far reaching.  Residents can expect to 
experience an increased financial burden when they reach 65.  More detail is needed on 
the comprehensive funding system included in the Green Paper.  For instance, would 
everyone above the agreed threshold pay the same flat rate? We believe that the 
partnership and comprehensive funding system would benefit the most well off, paying 
less, proportionately of their greater wealth and impact on many of Barking and 
Dagenham’s residents unfairly.  
 
Our view is that the suggested withdrawal of the Disability Living Allowance and 
Attendance Allowance will impact unfavourably on the physically and mentally disabled 
population in the Borough.  The allowance is an essential income for some residents and 
helps maintain independence.  In addition no mention is made in the Green Paper of the 
impact on those women who have never had paid work.  The funding options may create 
greater inequalities and local residents may be unfairly disadvantaged.  
 
Safeguarding Children 
No specific implications 
 
Crime and Disorder 
No specific implications 
 
Property / Assets 
No specific implications 
 
Options appraisal 
 
Options put forward within the Green Paper fall within three key areas: 
 

1.  The elements of the proposed National Care Service 
 
2.  Individual funding: 

• Partnership 
• Insurance 
• Comprehensive 

 
3.  The role of the Council: 

• Part-local, part-national 
• Fully national 
 

Report Author 
and Head of 
Service: 
Karen Ahmed 

Title: 
Head of Adult 
Commissioning 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2331 
Fax: 020 8227 2241 
E-mail: Karen.ahmed@lbbd.gov.uk 

 

Page 5



 
 
1.  Background 
 
1.1 The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham have carried out local 

consultations as part of ‘The Big Care Debate’ and over 250 residents, officers and 
Members and have contributed to this report.  

 
2. Barking and Dagenham’s Response 

 
2.1 The London Borough of Barking and Dagenham welcomes the Green Paper and 

recognises the need for debate on how older people can receive the care and 
support that they need and on how this support can be funded. 

 
2.2 We broadly support the six elements of the National Care Service: 

• Access to prevention services  
• A national assessment  
• A joined up service  
• Information and advice  
• Personalised care and support  
• Fair funding  

 
However there needs to be more work carried out to make sure that people receive 
the quality of support required.  Residents were concerned that the emphasis on 
choice may be at the expense of quality and joined up services.  

 
2.3 We are particularly concerned at the lack of focus on how preventative services can 

be funded and within this the withdrawal of Attendance Allowance.  Our view is that 
Attendance Allowance helps people to continue to live active lives and delays 
contact with Adult Social Care services.  For many of our residents, who are on 
extremely low incomes, it represents an essential part of their income, and the 
withdrawal of the benefit would have serious consequences not addressed in the 
paper.  The Government needs to ensure that people on low incomes who are 
currently in receipt of Attendance Allowance, have their income maintained should 
this allowance be withdrawn.  

 
2.4 We are very worried, and local residents are angered, by the funding proposals.  

There is a shared view that the proposals do not represent fair funding options and 
we request that taxation be reconsidered as a way forward, particularly for those 
who are very high earners.  Residents were concerned that having paid national 
insurance all their lives, and having supported their older generations, that they 
were now being asked to pay for themselves.  For many people this felt like paying 
twice.  Residents wanted the Government to scrutinize its own spending and look at 
other ways of finding the money.  Views are split between the partnership and the 
insurance options, but there is a general consensus that people should not be 
paying for other people’s care at this stage in their lives.  Any insurance scheme 
should be administered through the government and not through a private 
company.  

 
2.5 It is clear that the present system is unfair, with people being penalised for saving.  

However, the options presented do not seem to be any fairer.  Indeed, our view is 
that the options present will create greater inequality and that our local residents will 

Page 6



be unfairly disadvantaged.  No mention is made of how women who have never had 
paid work because of domestic commitments will be affected.  The partnership 
model disadvantages poorer people and benefits those who are better off.  In a 
borough with a population in extremely poor health and with one of the lowest life 
expectancy rates in London, the likelihood is that our residents will be using part of 
their limited income to fund an insurance scheme that they will not receive the full 
benefits from.  

 
2.6  Accommodation costs are deliberately not addressed by the Green Paper.  

However, our view is that these costs do need to be factored in to the discussion as 
the total costs of someone’s living and support expenses should be fully 
understood.  Again, we have a concern that people on low incomes and with 
minimal assets, for whom residential care is the only option, may be penalised.  

 
2.7 We are concerned that there is an assumption that the same monies recycled will 

meet the increasing demand from our older population.  We recommend that the 
government review the financial profiling to make sure that older people are 
properly supported at all stages in their lives to remain as active as possible and to 
receive personalized care and support services.  

 
2.8 We are further concerned that the funding options offer people the option of 

delaying any payment until after their death.  This could have serious implications 
on local government finance, particularly in transition, where councils would have to 
bear the costs of care and support until such time as the monies could be recouped.  
Given the extremely low average income of our local population, this is likely to be 
the preferred option, with serious consequences for our ability to provide services.  

 
2.9 We welcome the idea of a national needs assessment.  The idea of national 

funding, whilst initially attractive, does not take into account local variations such 
differences in services, levels of preventative services and will restrict the local 
authorities’ ability to respond flexibly to meet local needs.  

 
3. Links to Corporate and other Plans and Strategies 
 
3.1 No specific links to corporate plans and strategies.  
 
4. Consultees 
 
4.1 Resident consultation - The residents of Barking and Dagenham were able to 

consult on the Green Paper through the following forums: 
• Learning Disabilities Carers Coffee Morning – 15 September  & discussion 

group on 28 September 2009  
• Forum for the Elderly – 24 September 2009 
• Older People’s Day – 1 October 2009 

 
4.2 An information stall and a consultation group was held during the Older People’s 

Day event at Goresbrook Leisure Centre.  14 feedback forms were returned from 
the day and many more oral comments were noted.  Notes were also taken from 
discussions at the Learning Disabilities Carers Coffee Morning and the Forum for 
the Elderly.  Overall, approximately 250 residents were able to air their views on the 
Green Paper. 

 

Page 7



 
 
4.3 Councillor consultation – The following Councillors attended a discussion group on 

the Green Paper on 6 October 2009: 
Councillor Collins, Cabinet Member for Adults and Public Health. 
Councillor Carpenter, Chair of the Health and Adults Services Select Committee. 
Councillor West, deputising for Councillor Hunt, Deputy Chair of the Health and 
Adults Services Select Committee. 
Councillor Vincent, Chair of the Living and Working Select Committee. 
Councillor Kallar, Deputy Chair of the Living and Working Select Committee. 

 
4.4 Staff consultation - 
 Adult and Community Services Department Management Team, 30 September 
 2009. 
 Corporate Management Team, 21 October 2009. 
 
 
5. Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

The Green Paper ‘Shaping the Future of Care Together’ presented to Parliament by 
the Secretary of State for Health on 14 July 2009. 
 

 
6. List of appendices: 
 

London Council’s Briefing on Social Care Green Paper - Appendix A. 

Page 8



 
Appendix A 

 
LONDON COUNCIL’S BRIEFING ON SOCIAL CARE GREEN PAPER 

 
What Would the New National Care Service Offer? 
 
The Green Paper proposes a vision for a National Care Service founded on the following 
principles: 
 
1. Prevention Services 
 
You will receive the right support to help you stay independent and well for as long as 
possible and to stop your care and support needs getting worse.  This support could 
include: 
• Re-ablement package - people who are leaving hospital and needing care and support 
for the first time should have the right to re-ablement support for six weeks to help them re-
learn personal care tasks.  
• Continued promotion of Telecare to allow people to stay in their homes with more 
confidence for longer.  
• Increased access and information for individuals about prevention and early intervention.  
• Housing support - supported living and home adaptations to delay and prevent the need 
for care.  
 
2. National Assessment 
 
Wherever you are in England, you will have the right to have your care and support needs 
assessed in the same way.  And you will have the right to have the same proportion of 
your care and support costs paid for wherever you live.  The needs assessment would 
therefore be national and portable.  
 
3. Joined-up Services 
 
All the services that you need will work together smoothly, particularly where you needs 
are assessed.  Services that feed into social care assessment and provision will be 
personalised to work for the individual in a more integrated joined-up service.  The 
Government aim for better interaction between health, transport, leisure and housing in 
assessment and delivery of social care.  Assessment will be seen as an ongoing 
engagement as a more responsive and flexible system to respond to changing care needs.  
 
4. Information and Advice 
 
Increased amount of access to information will be available when an individual is preparing 
for or needs social care services.  An individual should know: who can help with social 
care and support, what care they can expect, and how quickly they can expect it.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



5. Personalised Care and Support 
 
The services you use will be based on your personal circumstances and need.  There will 
be greater individual choice over care and support packages, bolstered by individual 
budgets.  Local authorities are expected to take the lead in encouraging the development 
of a much wider range of care services and assisting the two way dialogue when creating 
a care package with a service user.  This includes continued support for carers through the 
Carers’ Strategy.  
 
6. Fair Funding 
 
The government wants a funding system that is fair and sustainable with everyone who 
qualifies for care and support getting some help in meeting the cost of care and support 
needs.  
 
The Funding Options for Social Care 
 
The government wants a new social care funding system that is fair, simple, affordable, 
sustainable, universal, flexible and personalised.  The Green Paper ruled out any system 
completely funded by the individual or completely funded by general taxation as both were 
argued to be unfair burdens on the individual and tax-payer respectively.  Currently the 
average 65 year-old in England who needs care will face costs over £30,000 during their 
retirement years, however 20% of adults needing care will face costs over £50 000.  
 
The Green Paper proposes making better use of existing funding.  Social care funding and 
disability benefits have developed in isolation for one another.  They are the two largest 
streams of government expenditure on social care and support, however they are 
allocated on different bases which can lead to inconsistent and unfair outcomes.  For 
example Attendance Allowance is distributed on a universal basis and social care funding 
is means tested.  The government aims to simplify and integrate sources of support, 
potentially integrating some elements of Attendance Allowance and rationalising the 
assessment process.  This would be in conjunction with individual budgets, if appropriate, 
to keep the flexibility that Attendance Allowance currently provides to individuals.  
 
1.  Partnership Funding Model 
 
Responsibility for paying for social care is shared between the individual and the 
government.  Everyone regardless of their circumstances would have a proportion of their 
care costs paid for by the state - potentially 1/4 or 1/3.  The average care costs during 
retirement are £30,000.  The state may therefore cover £8,000 to £10,000.   
 
This system would be progressive, where people with less money would get a higher 
proportion paid for by the state, and those would very low incomes would be wholly funded 
by the state.  Above the proportion paid for by the state, the individual would be 
responsible for funding their own care out of their income or assets, potentially paid for by 
deferred payments.  
 
Advantages: 
• Minimum universal entitlement package were everyone is guaranteed state funding for a 
proportion of their care costs.  
• Individuals only pay for care costs if they develop a need above the minimum entitlement.  

Page 10



• Advantageous to those individuals with lower care costs or those on higher incomes who 
do not currently receive any support.  
• Progressive system which supports those on low incomes.  
• Pools risk to a greater degree than the current system.  
 
Disadvantages: 
• Those with very high care costs and acute needs who own their own homes will still have 
to pay high amounts, especially if they face long stays in a care home.  
• Potential for the cost of funding of the minimum entitlement (through integration of 
Attendance Allowance) to escalate and be unsustainable with costs and numbers of 
service users rising over the next 20 years.  
• There is the need for far more clarity on what exactly the minimum entitlement would 
cover.  Would this be given out through individual budgets and left to individual choice, or 
would it be confined to personal care costs for example? 
 
2.  Partnership Plus Insurance 
 
This funding system would be as the partnership system, however people who wished to 
protect themselves against higher care costs could pay into an insurance scheme that 
would pay for costs above the state funded minimum entitlement if they needed it.  (This 
insurance contribution is estimated at £25,000).  The Green Paper discusses whether this 
insurance scheme would be private or state-backed.  However in either case people could 
choose how much they wanted to insure themselves against higher care costs.  
 
Advantages: 
• Increased choice and flexibility for those who wish to insure themselves and protect their 
assets against higher levels of care costs.  
• An individual would know the exact level of care coverage they would be entitled to.  
 
Disadvantages: 
• There may not be enough take-up of voluntary insurance schemes to make the fund 
viable into the future - those who have enough income to pay for insurance and wish to 
protect their assets may be a finite demographic.  
• Insurance packages may need incentives to encourage people to contribute.  
• An insurance system may encounter difficulties with a part-national, part-local funding 
system.  
• The insurance market may not be ready to offer a product like this.  
 
3.  Comprehensive Model 
 
People at or over retirement age would be required to pay into a national scheme that 
would fund all costs for their social care (apart from accommodation and living costs in 
care homes), should they need it.  This will potentially mean a contribution of £17,000 - 
£20,000.  The size of peoples’ contribution would be progressive according to assets and 
income, people on very low incomes would still be funded by the state.  A large proportion 
of the scheme would still come from general taxation.  There could be flexibility in the way 
this sum was paid either by deferred payments, lump sum or gradual payments through 
someone’s lifetime.  
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Advantages: 
• This fully comprehensive system means once people had paid their contribution, all their 
care and support needs would be covered if they needed it (apart from accommodation 
and living costs in care homes).  
• A clear system of contribution and coverage.  
• A high level of risk pooling, therefore a cheaper option than a smaller amount of 
individuals paying into a voluntary insurance scheme.  
• Assets are protected to a far greater extent - except for those needing long term care in 
care homes who would still have to pay their accommodation and living costs.  
 
Disadvantages: 
• Some people will pay into the scheme and receive little or nothing out of it if they do not 
need social care.  
 
A Nationally or Locally Determined Funding System 
 
The needs assessment for the National Care Service is meant to be a national 
assessment and portable wherever someone might move in England.  However the way 
these assessed needs are met by local authorities could differ.  This system could be 
funded by a part–national, part–local system or by a fully national system.  This has 
important implications for the way in which money is raised and distributed around 
England for social care.  
 
1. Part-National, Part-Local System 
 
Local authorities would continue to raise some of the money that goes into social care 
through council tax.  People under this system would know what they are entitled to under 
the national assessment and a proportion of their care and support would be paid for by 
the state.  Local authorities would be responsible for deciding how much an individual 
would receive to spend on their care - giving local authorities the flexibility to take into 
account 
different local services and costs.  
 
Advantages: 
• More flexibility for local authorities who are better placed to understand their own 
communities, resources, costs and priorities.  
• More room for innovation in new kinds of care and support services with flexibility of 
funding.  
 
Disadvantages: 
• Different amounts of funding could be perceived as unfair, local authorities would have to 
be transparent that they were actually meeting people’s assessed need in the services and 
funding they provided.  
 
2.  A Fully National System 
 
Under this system, national government would decide how much funding people would 
receive for their assessed need - potentially giving out the same amount of money for the 
same levels of need or weighted on the costs of services in different areas of the country.  
The funding would no longer come from council tax but would become part of general 
taxation.  
 

Page 12



Advantages: 
• Could be perceived as fairer as everyone receives the same amount of funding.  
• Central government may not be best placed to understand different local authorities 
situations in the services they are able to offer, different costs of provision (for example 
London and the South East have higher staffing costs), and it could take away local 
authority flexibility to provide real choice and personalised care and support.  
• Hence one-price-fits-all may mean that individuals in high cost areas receive less care 
comparatively.  
• Could be perceived as clipping local authority powers of revenue raising and local 
flexibility.  
• It could lessen accountability by removing overall decision making to central government 
from democratically elected councillors.  Local people could lose some of their voice in the 
care services area.  
 
Role of Local Government 
 
The government states that any increases in net costs for local authorities will be funded 
by central government in line with the ‘new burdens’ principle.  Whichever funding system 
is agreed, the green paper indicates that local authorities will play a key role in delivering 
care and support.  They will continue to: 
• Be the channel for state funding for care and support.  
• Undertake eligibility assessments.  
• Provide information, advocacy and care management for individuals.  
• Provide and commission services, and manage the market of social care providers.  
• Foster innovation in care and support, using their freedom to decide exactly how services 
are delivered at a local level.  
 
 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
EXECUTIVE 

 
3 November 2009 

 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 
Title:  Local Development Framework: Residential 
Extensions and Alterations Draft Supplementary 
Planning Document. 
 

For Decision 

Summary 
 
Extensions and alterations to existing properties can provide residents with a greater 
standard of living without the financial burden of moving to a new house. However 
extensions if not designed properly can harm the appearance of the borough’s streets and 
have an adverse impact on the amenity and privacy of neighbouring properties. 
 
This Draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (attached as Appendix 1) contains 
design advice which applicants will have to follow when applying for planning permission 
for residential extensions and alterations. The current guidelines for the extension and 
alteration of dwellings is provided in Appendix 7 of the Unitary Development Plan. The 
Unitary Development Plan will soon be replaced by the Local Development Framework so 
the opportunity has been taken to review, update and improve this guidance. The new 
guidance: 
 
• takes account of the changes to the General Permitted Development Order which 

increases the range of works that can be undertaken without planning permission 
 

• provides clearer and more detailed advice on how to ensure extensions and alterations 
that do require planning permission are designed properly, this will help: 
 
o preserve neighbours amenity and privacy 

 
o improve the quality of applications submitted and therefore save time for the 

Council and applicants 
 
Consultation with the statutory consultees, identified in accordance with the Government’s 
Planning Policy Statement 12, will be undertaken for a period of 6 weeks and the remainder of 
the local consultation will be undertaken in line with the Council’s Statement of Community 
Involvement. Officers will address the comments received and bring a final copy of the SPD 
to the Executive for approval in early 2010. 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken of this draft guidance. 
 
Wards Affected: All. 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 15



Recommendation(s) 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
1 Approve the Residential Extensions and Alterations Draft Supplementary Planning 

Document for consultation; and. 
 

2 Approve the use of the Residential Extensions and Alterations Draft Supplementary 
Planning Document as a material consideration in the determination of planning 
applications by members of the Development Control Board and officers. 

 
Reason(s) 
 
To help deliver the Community Plan objective: “A clean, green and sustainable borough 
with far greater awareness of the actions needed to tackle climate change, with less 
pollution, waste, fly�tipping and graffiti.” 
 
Implications 
 
Financial 
The costs of consulting on the Draft SPD and implementing the SPD through the 
Development Management process will be met from the existing Regeneration and 
Economic Development budget.   
 
Legal 
The Local Development Framework regime was introduced by the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (the “2004 Act”). It replaces the Unitary Development 
Plan. The process is set out in secondary legislation namely the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004. The Regulations were 
amended in June 2008 by the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) 
(amendment) Regulations 2008. 

 
The proposed policy is a Supplementary Planning Document and subject to defined 
consultation procedures requiring publishing on the Council’s Web-Site; advertising notice 
of the proposal; availability for inspection at the Councils Offices. 
 
As part of the consultation procedure the draft policy should be sent to each of the 
specified consultation bodies to the extent that the local planning authority thinks that the 
SPD affects the body and such other bodies as the Council considers appropriate. 
 
The consultation period must not be longer than 6 weeks or shorter than 4 weeks. If 
representations are received they must be considered prior to formal adoption. 
 
Contractual 
No specific implications 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Risk Management 
Risk Probability Impact Priority Action 

Failure to meet legal 
requirements. 

Low  High High • Relevant Act and 
Regulations will be followed 
in preparing and adopting 
SPD. 

Policy not applied 
successfully 

Low High High • This SPD has been 
prepared by Development 
Management who will also 
be responsible for using the 
SPD when determining 
applications for residential 
extensions and alterations. 

Policy not applied 
successfully 

Low High High • This SPD has been 
prepared by Development 
Management who will also 
be responsible for using the 
SPD when determining 
applications for residential 
extensions and alterations. 

Guidance is not 
upheld at appeal 

Medium High High • This SPD takes account of 
the latest changes to the 
General Permitted 
Development Order. It is also 
far more comprehensive than 
the Council’s current 
guidance and therefore will 
enable the Council to take a 
more consistent approach to 
householder’s applications 
and appeals. The Planning 
Inspectorate and the 
Government Office will be 
consulted on the draft 
document and it is hoped any 
concerns can be addressed 
then. 

 
Staffing 
No specific implications. 
 
Customer Impact 
The new guidance provides clearer and more detailed advice for those submitting planning 
applications for a proposal which involves the extension or alteration to their home. 
Applicants should therefore be more certain as to what they need to do to gain planning 
permission thereby saving time for themselves and planning officers. In addition clearer 
guidance should save applicants money. 
 
Safeguarding Children 
No specific implications. 
 
Crime and Disorder 

Page 17



Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a responsibility on local authorities 
to consider the crime and disorder implications of any proposals.  Applicants will also need 
to consult the Council’s Planning Advice Note on Crime Prevention through Environmental 
Design. 
 
Property / Assets 
No specific implications 
 
Options appraisal 
The two options for this guidance are: 
• To produce the SPD 
• To not produce the SPD 
Staff consider that it is necessary to update the Council’s existing guidance on residential 
extensions and alterations to ensure that comprehensive and up to date guidance is 
available to applicants so that residential extensions and alterations are sympathetic to 
their surrounding environment and do not adversely affect the amenity and privacy of 
those living in surrounding properties. 
 
Head of Service: 
Jeremy Grint 

Title: 
Head of Regeneration 
and Economic 
Development 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 (2443) 
Fax: 020 8227 (3490) 
E-mail: (jeremy.grint@lbbd.gov.uk) 
 

Report Author: 
Daniel Pope 

Title: 
Group Manager 
Development Planning 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 (3929) 
Fax: 020 8227 (3490) 
E-mail: (daniel.pope@lbbd.gov.uk) 
 

 
 
1. Consultees 
 
1.1  The following were consulted in the preparation of this report: 

 
Councillor:  
Councillor McCarthy  

 
Chief Executive’s Department 
Andy Butler 
Dave Mansfield 
Jeremy Grint 
 
Customer Services Department 
Darren Henaghan 
Stephen Clarke  
 
Adult and Community Services Department 
Heather Wills 
James Oaten 
Glynis Rogers 
 
Resources Dept 

Page 18



Bill Murphy 
Sue Lees 
Yinka Owa 
Colin Beever 
Alex Anderson 
 

2. Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

• London Borough of Barking and Dagenham Unitary Development Plan 1995. 
• Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 
• The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(Amendment) (No. 1) (England) Order 2008 
• The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

(Amendment) (No. 2) (England) Order 2008 
• Equalities Impact Assessment – Residential Extensions and Alterations Draft 

Supplementary Planning Document 
 
3. List of appendices: 
 

Appendix 1 – Draft Supplementary Planning Document – Residential Extensions 
and Alterations 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 
Local Development Framework 

 
 

 
Residential Extensions and 

Alterations 
Draft Supplementary Planning 

Document 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 2009

Page 21



 2

Contents  
 
1) Introduction…………………………………..………………………………...3 
 
2) Purpose of the guidance……………………………………………………..3 
 
3) Status…………………………………………………………………………….3 
 
4) Consultation…………………………………………………………………….4 
 
5) Key Principles…………………………………………………………………..5 
 
6) Individual Sections…………………………………………………………….8 
 
7) Further Advice and Information…………………………………………...22 
 
8) Useful Contacts……………………………………………………………….23 
 
Appendices………………………………………………………………………..24 

Page 22



 3

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is Supplementary to policy 

BP8 of the London Borough of Barking and Dagenham Borough Wide 
Development Policy BP8 “Protecting residential amenity” and BP11 
“Urban Design” and policy H22 “Extensions and Alterations” of the Unitary 
Development Plan. It contains design advice which applicants must follow 
when applying for planning permission for residential extensions and 
alterations 

 
1.2 The SPD does not have the same status as the development plan but, 

once adopted, it will be an important material consideration in the 
determination of planning applications.  

 
1.3 The provisions of this SPD will be implemented primarily through the 

determination of applications for residential extensions and alterations.  
 
 
2. Purpose of the guidance 
 
2.1 This supplementary planning document provides guidance for people 

who want to extend and improve their home. The aim of this guidance 
is to highlight the different aspects of an extension that the Council will 
consider when determining whether or not it is acceptable.  

 
2.2 The Council appreciates the benefits of extensions. They can provide 

residents with a greater standard of living without the financial burden 
of moving to a new house. Not all extensions will be acceptable within 
all settings. However, the Council is not attempting to restrict innovative 
design and all applications will be judged on their individual merits. 

 
2.3 The guidance is split into two main sections. The first deals with the 

key principles of householder development which can be applicable to 
all forms of extension and alteration. The second deals with the 
different types of extensions and alterations and outlines the specific 
design criteria that require consideration. You may first need to 
determine whether or not you require planning permission for your 
extension. This section of the guidance will also outline the current 
Permitted Development legislation to help with this. Please note that 
certain households have had their permitted development rights 
removed. A list of areas where this is likely to apply can be found at 
page 26. 

 

3.  Status 
 
3.1 This Consultation Draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) has 

been issued under Regulation 17 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Development) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008. 
Responses to this Consultation Draft SPD will be taken into 

Page 23



 4

consideration within a revised document, which the Council will then 
proceed to adopt.  

 
3.2 This guidance has been put together in accordance with the framework 

provided in the Government’s Planning Policy Statement 12: Local 
Spatial Planning (2008). The Statutory Development Plan is the 
starting point when determining planning application for the 
development or use of land. The Development Plan consists of the 
London Plan (consolidated with Alterations since 2008) the London 
Borough of Barking and Dagenham’s Development Plan Documents 
(DPDs) and the saved Unitary Development Plan policies. 

 
3.3 Once adopted, this SPD will provide further detail on the 

implementation of DPD policy that applicants must follow to ensure 
they meet the policy requirements. 

 
 
4. Consultation 
 
4.1 The consultation on this Draft SPD is inline with Barking and 

Dagenham’s Statement of Community Involvement and runs from  
XX 2009 to XX 2009.  

 
Copies are available on the Barking and Dagenham website at  
http://barking-dagenham.limehouse.co.uk/portal/  

 
Alternatively, you can request a copy by emailing 
planningpolicy@lbbd.go.uk or writing to: 
 
Steven Holmes 
Development Management 
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
3rd Floor, Maritime House 
1 Linton Road 
Essex 
IG11 8HG  
 
Responses can be made online at  
http://barking-dagenham.limehouse.co.uk/portal/, sent by email to 
planningpolicy@lbbd.go.uk or by post to the above address.  

Page 24



 5

5. Key Principles 
 
5.1 Design 
 
5.1.1 The Borough is home to a variety of different residential areas as well 

as individual house types. The Council views all residential areas as an 
asset to the borough and will seek to protect and enhance the unique 
character of each of these areas. Unfortunately, parts of the borough 
have had their character slowly eroded by unsympathetic design.  

 
5.1.2 Many parts of the Borough are comprised of terraced housing and the 

area’s character draws from the uniformity this creates. Other areas 
are predominantly comprised of pairs of semi-detached properties. 
Here, the separation, gaps between buildings and the symmetry of 
each pair is a key component of the area’s character. However, in 
many areas there is a mix of different building forms which create their 
own unique character.   

 
5.1.3 When extending your house, you must consider the impact the 

changes you make may have upon the street scene. All extensions 
should be designed so as to reflect the character of the area in which 
they are located. Extensions which undermine the existing built form of 
the area by not respecting the prevailing character will not normally be 
acceptable.  

 
5.1.4 Above all, your extension should not appear out of place when viewed 

as part of the existing environment. This will be achieved in a number 
of ways: 

 
5.1.5 Will the design of the extension be sympathetic to the existing 

house? You should ensure that the character of the existing dwelling is 
respected when designing your extension and particular care should be 
taken to ensure that the extension is sympathetically designed with 
regards to form and detailing. Extensions that fail to reflect the 
character of the existing dwelling will not be considered acceptable. 
Original features are generally a selling point as many buyers look for 
properties which have character and personality. 

 
5.1.6 Will the extension cause the original house to appear 

unbalanced? It is critical that any extension you propose should be of 
an appropriate scale. Extensions which fail to take this into account can 
appear overly dominant and have a damaging visual impact upon the 
street scene. Take into account the proportions of the existing dwelling. 
A well designed extension will appear subordinate to the original 
building and will not overwhelm it. The space between your property 
and your neighbour’s property should also be considered. You should 
avoid building to the extent that such spaces are effectively lost. An 
extension which results in the loss of a prominent gap between 
buildings will be considered unacceptable.  

 

Page 25



 6

5.1.7 How does the roof of your extension relate to the surrounding 
roofs? The type of roof you utilise is a very important factor when 
considering your application. The relationship between different roofs is 
a significant part of the area’s character. Any extension that does not 
take into account the existing roofscape of the area will be considered 
unacceptable. The roof should be of the same style as the roof of the 
original property including the pitch, eaves treatment and materials 
used. 

 
5.1.8 Do the materials you are using match those of the existing 

dwelling? The materials you use play an important role in integrating 
your extension into the house and surrounding area. The colour, type 
and texture of the materials are key considerations when determining 
the appropriateness of an extension. You must use matching materials 
as this will reduce the visual impact of your extension upon the dwelling 
and the surrounding area.  

 
5.1.9 Do any proposed windows fit within the existing pattern of 

windows? The placement, style and size of windows add to the 
character of a property. Windows which are not aligned horizontally 
and vertically can lead to a loss of this character and have an 
unbalancing effect. Any windows that do not reflect the design and size 
of those in the existing property can have a similar effect. Windows 
within an extension must reflect the current window arrangement in the 
rest of the dwelling. Internal floor levels will also be taken into account 
when judging whether or not windows are satisfactorily aligned.   

 
5.2 Amenity 
 
5.2.1 As well as considering the impact the design of your extension has 

upon the building and the surrounding area, the Council will also 
consider the impact it has upon the quality of life enjoyed by other 
people living nearby. Whilst some extensions will barely impact upon 
the amenity of others, some, especially if poorly designed, can have a 
much wider impact upon your neighbours. You should consider the 
following points:  

 
5.2.2 Will your extension impact upon your neighbour’s privacy? The 

impact of your extension on your neighbours’ privacy is something you 
need to consider carefully. The position of windows, balconies and 
terraces can lead to overlooking into neighbouring gardens as well as 
into adjacent windows. Direct overlooking of a neighbouring property 
which leads to a material loss of privacy will be considered 
unacceptable. Obscure glazing or high level windows can go some way 
to reducing this impact. However, where possible, you should avoid 
any form of window in walls which flank your neighbour’s property.  

 
5.2.3 Will your extension lead to a loss of light to your neighbours? 

Some extensions, particularly two storey extensions, can restrict the 
amount of natural light (sunlight and daylight) that passes to adjacent 

Page 26



 7

properties. An extension which causes an excessive loss of light to 
neighbouring properties will be considered unacceptable. You must 
ensure any extension does not overshadow neighbouring dwellings by 
taking into account the scale of the extension, the distance allowed to 
nearby dwellings and the positioning of the extension in relation to 
windows and clear glass extensions such as conservatories.   

 
5.2.4 Will your extension be overbearing upon neighbouring 

properties? As well as impacting upon your neighbours light, your 
extension may also lead to neighbouring properties being ‘penned in’. 
Extensions which are overly oppressive and cause neighbouring 
properties to suffer a material loss of outlook will be considered 
unacceptable. You should plan your extension so that it does not 
overwhelm the areas around it through overly bulky design.  

 
5.2.5 Will your extension result in the loss of an off-street car parking 

space? Demand for on-street car parking in the Borough is high so off-
street parking spaces are important in protecting the amenity of an 
area. Some extensions can result in existing off-street car parking 
becoming unusable or lost altogether and this could be a factor in 
determining the acceptability of the proposal. If you have off-street 
parking available on your property, you should avoid extending your 
house in a way that undermines the use of that space. The impact an 
extension has upon highway sight lines will also be a factor in the 
determination of an application.  

 
5.2.6 Will you need to remove any trees in order to build your 

extension? Trees are a valuable part of the urban environment. Trees 
also have important ecological value. Some trees in the Borough are 
protected by Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs) and you must apply for 
permission to undertake works on them (The Development 
Management Team can advice on whether TPO would apply to the 
tree in question). Even those trees that are not protected by a TPO 
should be preserved where possible, especially where the tree makes 
a significant contribution to the street scene. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 8

6. Individual Sections 

 
 
6.1 Front extensions 
 
6.1.1 Extensions to the front of your house will invariably have an impact 

upon the street scene. In some cases, the impact of an extension at 
the front of the property may not be acceptable.  

 
6.1.2 To avoid any impact upon the street scene extensions should not have 

a depth of more than 1 metre. In some exceptional circumstances, for 
example where the property is set back a long distance from the 
highway, slightly larger extensions may be allowed.    

 

If you are planning on enlarging or extending your property, you will 
only require planning permission if any one or more of the following 
would apply: 

o More than half the area of the land around the "original house" would be 
covered by additions (including existing extensions) or other buildings. 
(The original house is the house as it was first built or as it stood on 1 
July 1948). 

o Any part of the extension would be higher than the highest part of the 
existing roof. 

o The maximum eaves height of the extension would be higher than the 
eaves height of the existing house. 

o The maximum ridge height of the extension would be higher than the 
ridge height of the existing house. 

o Any part of the extension would sit forward of the principal elevation or a
side elevation of the existing house and would front a highway. 

o The house is attached (terrace or semi-detached) and the extension 
would be single storey and have a maximum depth in excess of 3 
metres. 

o The house is detached and the extension would be single storey and 
have a maximum depth in excess of four metres. 

o The extension would have more than one storey and have a maximum 
depth in excess of 3m and be within seven metres of any boundary of 
the property opposite the rear wall of your house. 

o Any part of the extension would be within two metres of any boundary of
the property and the height of the eaves would exceed three metres. 

o The extension would be to the side of your house and would have more 
than one storey, have a maximum height in excess of four metres and 
would have a width more than half that of your original house. 

o The extension would involve the construction of a veranda, a balcony or 

Page 28



 9

 
 

6.1.3 It is very important that a front extension reflects the existing detailing 
of the house. The position and design of windows are key in helping to 
achieve this. You should preserve or replicate any distinct architectural 
features such as bay windows. The roof design should also match that 
of the main house. 

 
6.1.4 First floor extensions will not normally be acceptable as they will 

usually be overly prominent. 
6.1.5 Canopies or other overhanging projection or covering will be subject to 

the same criteria as front extensions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 Porches 

 

If you wish to construct a porch you will require planning permission 
if any one or more of the following apply: 

o The ground area of the porch (measured externally) would have a floor 
area in excess of 3 square metres. 

o Any part of the porch would be more than 3 metres above ground level.
o Any part of the porch would be within 2 metres of any boundary of the 

house with a highway. 

Figure 1

Page 29



 10

6.2.1 A porch is a type of front extension which acts as a covered entry way 
for the main access to a property. In many cases, a porch can be built 
without the need to obtain planning permission (see above). In the 
event planning permission is required, care should be taken to ensure 
that porch extensions do not dominate the front of the house. The 
guidance provided for standard front extensions above should be 
followed where possible. Special care should be taken to ensure that 
the porch does not result in the loss of or disguise features which are 
important to the character of the house in particular bay windows 

 
6.3 Rear extensions 

 
6.3.1 Rear extensions have a much reduced impact upon the street scene. 

However, a rear extension can have a significant impact on your 
neighbour’s amenity. 

 
6.3.2 Single storey extensions 
 

a) If the house is terraced or semi-detached, the depth of the 
extension should not normally exceed 3.65 metres as measured 
from the original rear wall of the house to ensure that there is no 
material loss of daylight and outlook to neighbouring properties. In 
exceptional circumstances, where an extension has a greater 
depth, that part of the extension which exceeds 3.65 metres must 
be within a 45 degree angle as measured from the corner of 
adjacent dwellings. 

 
b) If the house is detached then a judgement will be made as to how 

much of an impact the extension will have upon neighbouring 
properties. Consideration will be given to the size of the extension 
and the distances to nearby properties. 

 
c) An existing extension which is not original to the property will 

contribute towards the permitted depth outlined above (Figure 2). 
 

d) In circumstances where a dwelling has an existing original ‘tunnel-
back’ style extension, additional extensions can have a significant 
impact with regards the light and outlook of adjacent properties. In 
light of this, a view will be taken as to whether the impact on 
neighbouring properties is acceptable depending upon the 
prevailing circumstances. 

 
e) If the extension will have a flat roof then its height should not 

exceed 3 metres. If the extension will have a pitched roof then the 
height of the eaves (the external point where the wall and the roof 
meet) should not exceed 3 metres and the total height should not 
exceed 4 metres. You should also be aware that the height of any 
parapet wall will contribute towards the accepted height outlined 
above. Parapet walls should be kept to a minimum.  

 

Page 30



 11

f) Where a conservatory is proposed in addition to an extension, a 
maximum depth of 6 metres as measured from the original rear wall 
of the house will be allowed. You should pay particular attention to 
the side elevations of your conservatory to ensure that you are not 
impacting upon your neighbour’s amenity. In circumstances where 
the conservatory flanks a neighbour’s boundary, the side wall 
should be fitted with obscure glazing to protect the privacy of 
adjacent occupiers. Alternatively, the Council will allow walls that 
flank neighbouring boundaries to be constructed in solid materials 
to a maximum height of 2 metres in order to allow the passage of 
natural light. All remaining elevations and the roof of the 
conservatory should be glazed. 

 
g) You should seek to maintain a reasonable amount of private garden 

space for amenity purposes and to avoid overdeveloping your plot. 
Any extension should not normally cover more than 50% of your 
garden space (when taken together with any part of your garden 
covered by existing extensions or outbuildings).   

 

 
 

h) Roof terraces and balconies which are placed atop rear extensions 
will not be considered acceptable if they result in overlooking of 
neighbouring properties.  

 
6.3.3 Double Storey Extensions 
 

Figure 2 

Page 31



 12

a) Double storey extensions have the potential to significantly impact 
upon your neighbour’s property due to their scale. As such, they will 
only be considered acceptable if there is no material impact on 
neighbouring amenity. 

 
b) The depth of any proposed first floor extension as measured from 

the main rear wall should not exceed the distance from the 
proposed extension to the corner of the adjacent property. Where 
the adjacent property has a solid roof extension, the distance shall 
be taken from the corner of the extended part. As such, no part of 
the proposed extension should extend beyond a 45 degree angle 
as taken from the corner of the adjoining property (or the adjoining 
extension). The diagrams below illustrate this approach (Figure 3). 

 
c) It is important that the design of your extension is sympathetic 

towards the original house. Particular attention should be paid to 
ensure the roof treatment reflects the character of the original 
dwelling. For example, where the main roof of the house is pitched, 
this should be continued over the extension. Flat-roofed extensions 
will not be considered acceptable in the vast majority of 
circumstances.  

 

 
 

d) You should seek to maintain a reasonable amount of private garden 
space for amenity purposes and to avoid overdeveloping your plot. 
Any extension should not normally cover more than 50% of your 
garden space (when taken together with any part of your garden 
covered by existing extensions or outbuildings).   

Figure 3

Page 32



 13

6.4 Side extensions 
 
6.4.1 The design of your side extension should reflect the type of house and 

the type of plot. Side extensions have the potential to cause significant 
impact upon the character of an area. It is essential that you pay 
particular attention to the manner in which your proposal is designed. 
All side extensions should be particularly sympathetic in terms of their 
form, roof treatment, detailing and materials. 

 
6.4.2 Terrace Houses 
 

a) If you live in a house which is end-of-terrace and you extend your 
house to the side, the gap separating your property from your 
neighbours may become closed and have a detrimental effect on 
the street scene. Side extensions will be required to leave a gap of 
a minimum of one metre to your neighbour’s boundary in order to 
prevent this from occurring. 

 
b) The extension should be designed so that the front elevation is 

parallel with the front elevation of the existing house. This will help 
to maintain the built form of the terrace of which the house is a part 
(Figure 4). 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Figure 4

Page 33



 14

6.4.3 Semi-Detached Houses 
 

a) As with terraced houses, the gap between a semi-detached house 
and the neighbouring property is considered important. Therefore, 
you should seek to ensure there is a gap of at least one metre 
between your extension and your neighbour’s boundary.  

 
b) The character of a semi-detached house is partly derived from the 

symmetry it has in relation to its adjacent twin. A side extension can 
significantly alter this balance. As such, you should seek to make 
your extension appear subordinate to the existing house. This 
should be achieved by setting the extension back by a distance of 
at least one metre at first floor level from the main front wall of the 
house (Figure 5).  

 
 

 
 

 
6.4.4 Detached Houses  
 

a) As with both the above settings, the gaps between a detached 
house and the adjacent properties will be an important component 
in the character of the area. A distance of at least one metre to the 
side boundary should be maintained to preserve these spaces, 
however, in some circumstances, a greater distance may be 
required.  

 
b) Detached houses do not tend towards a particular style or built 

form. As such, the impact of extensions shall be considered on an 

Figure 5

Page 34



 15

individual basis. Particular consideration will be given to the 
distance the dwelling is set back from the street scene and the 
symmetry of the house, although all other relevant design criteria 
shall also be applied. 

 
6.4.5 Corner Plots 
 

a) Corner plots are particularly prominent parts of the street scene. In 
many localities they help to reduce the sense of enclosure that 
would exist if they were otherwise built upon and are vital to an 
area’s character as a result. Particular care needs to be taken 
where the house is located at the corner of a cul-de-sac or ‘banjo’ 
which derives a deal of their character from open corner spaces. An 
extension that compromises the openness of the plot could have a 
detrimental impact on the street scene that could be considered 
unacceptable. Particular attention should therefore be given to 
minimising the bulk of the extension. 

 
b) Any side extension within a corner plot should be set back a 

minimum of one metre from the highway. On particularly prominent 
corners, extensions should not normally extend beyond the 
adjacent building line which shares the junction. Extensions that do 
not comply may be considered overly intrusive in the street scene 
and will normally be considered unacceptable.   

 
6.5 Accommodation for People with Disabilities 
 
6.5.1 If your extension is required to meet the needs of a person who is 

registered disabled, or a person who has restricted mobility and is 
physically dependent on the occupier of the house, the Council may 
look more favourably upon proposals that fail to comply with the design 
criteria outlined above. 

 
a) Any element of the proposal that is in excess of the requirements in 

this guidance should be kept to a minimum. You should 
demonstrate that strenuous efforts have been made to design the 
extension within the criteria set out above.  

 
b) Any extension that leads to a significant loss of amenity to 

neighbouring properties will be considered unacceptable. 

Page 35



 16

6.6 Roof Alterations and Loft Conversions 

 
 
6.6.1 You do not require planning permission in order to undertake the 

internal alterations required for a loft conversion. However, if you are 
required to make external alterations to your roof as part of a loft 
conversion, planning permission may then be required. Where planning 
permission is required, you must make efforts to ensure the 
characteristics of the original roof are retained as far as is possible. 
(Please note, small roof light type windows which are integrated into 
the roof slope will not generally require planning permission except 
where they project by more than 150mm from the roof slope). 

 
6.6.2 Dormer Windows 
 

a) Dormer windows should, in the vast majority of circumstances, be 
restricted to the rear of your property. Dormers at the front and side 
of a property will, in most circumstances, be out of character with 
the surrounding area and will be considered unacceptable.  

 

If you are enlarging your house by altering the roof, you will require 
planning permission if any one or more of the following apply: 

o Any part of the altered roof would have a height in excess of the highest 
part of the existing roof. 

o Any part of the altered roof would extend beyond the plane of the 
existing roof slope that forms part of the principal elevation of the house 
and fronts a highway. 

o The house is terraced and the cubic content of the altered roof space 
exceeds the cubic content of the original roof space by 40 cubic metres 
or more. 

o The house is not terraced (i.e. it is semi-detached or detached) and the 
cubic content of the altered roof space exceeds the cubic content of the 
original roof space by 50m³ or more. 

o The alterations would involve the construction of a veranda, a balcony 
or a raised platform. 

o The edge of any enlargement is within 200mm of the eaves of the 
original house. 

You should also be aware that the above developments would only be 
permitted on condition that:  

o The extension or roof alteration is built using materials that are similar to 
those in the exterior of the existing house.  

o Any upper-floor, side-facing windows must be obscure-glazed and non-
opening from a height of 1.7 metres above the internal floor. 

Page 36



 17

b) Your dormer windows should be designed so that it sits entirely 
within the roof slope and does not unduly dominate the house. No 
part of the dormer should extend above the ridge and beyond eaves 
or flanks of the roof. The front edge of the dormer should be set 
back from the eaves of the roof to avoid the roof being squared off. 
The materials used in the construction of the dormer should match 
those used in the existing house (Figure 6).  

 

 
 
 

c) You should pay attention to the position of existing windows within 
your property and attempt to align your dormer window in relation to 
this. 

 
6.6.3 Hip-to-Gable Extensions 
 

a) In most circumstances, a hip-to-gable extension or half-hipping of a 
roof will not be considered acceptable as this would materially alter 
the character of the roof and be out of keeping with the surrounding 
area. 

  
b) In cases where it may be considered acceptable, particular 

attention should be paid to the installation of any windows within the 
roof. Windows should be high level and non-opening in order to 
ensure that no overlooking occurs. 

Figure 6

Page 37



 18

6.7 Garages and Outbuildings 
 

 
6.7.1 Garages 
 

a) Garages should not sit closer to the highway than the front 
elevation of the house. This would be overly dominant within the 
street scene and be considered unacceptable as a result. 

 
b) If you propose to build your garage to the side of your house you 

should pay careful attention to its design. Emphasis should be 
placed on reflecting the existing built form of the surrounding area. 
All garages that are visible from the street should be finished with a 
pitched roof. Flat roofs will not normally be acceptable. The choice 
of materials should also reflect the materials used in the dwelling 
and those in the immediate locality.  

 
c) The impact that a garage would have upon the highway should also 

be considered. There should be a set back from the highway by a 
sufficient enough distance that would not result in you causing an 
obstruction. The types of door you use will dictate the minimum 
distance required. Roller shutter doors require a minimum set-back 
of 4.8m. Up-and-over doors will require a minimum set-back of 5m. 
Two leafed doors will require a minimum set-back of 6m. A 
condition may be placed on garages which are not sufficiently set 
back to ensure an electronic opening system is installed and 
retained (Figure 7).  

 

If you wish to construct an outbuilding (including non attached 
garages), you will require planning permission if any one or more of 
the following apply: 

o More than half the area of the land around the "original house" would be 
covered by additions (including existing extensions) or other buildings. 

o Any part of the outbuilding would sit forward of the principal elevation of 
the house. 

o The outbuilding would have more than one storey. 
o Any part of the outbuilding would be within 2.5 metres of the boundaries 

of the property and would have a height in excess of 2 metres. 
o The outbuilding would have a dual-pitched roof and would have a height 

in excess of 4 metres. 
o The outbuilding would have a non dual-pitched roof and would have a 

height in excess of 3 metres. 
o The eaves of the outbuilding would have a height in excess of 2.5 

metres. 
o The outbuilding would involve the construction of a veranda, a balcony 

or a raised platform. 

Page 38



 19

d) Garages can impact upon highway safety. As such, the implications 
on highway safety will be considered when determining the 
acceptability of a proposal. Particular attention will paid to the 
impact a garage has upon highway sight lines. 

 

 
 
 

e) Conversions of existing garages into habitable rooms do not 
normally require planning permission. However, some non-original 
garages that were constructed with the benefit of planning 
permission have conditions restricting their use. In these cases, you 
must apply for planning permission. When deciding if planning 
permission should be granted, the Council will consider whether the 
loss of the garage will impact upon on-street parking demand. If the 
loss of the garage would have a significant impact upon an area of 
high parking demand, planning permission may be refused. 

 
f) If you are planning to construct a garage you will also need to 

consider the implications of any associated hard-surfacing or drop-
kerbs (See below). 

 
6.7.2 Outbuildings 
 
6.7.3 Outbuildings may be required for any number of purposes, for 

example, as gymnasiums, playrooms etc. If your outbuilding requires 
planning permission then you must consider the impact it may have in 
terms of design and amenity. 

 
a) You will not normally planning permission for an outbuilding if it 

can function as an entirely separate dwelling. Its use must be 
ancillary or related to the use of your property as a dwelling. Any 
unrelated use will normally be refused.  

Figure 7

Page 39



 20

 
b) Your outbuilding should be designed and positioned in a manner 

which restricts its impact upon neighbouring dwellings. Any 
outbuilding which results in a material loss of light or outlook 
with respect to neighbouring dwellings will be considered 
unacceptable.  

 
6.8 Hard Surfaces  

 

6.8.1 Where a hard surface requires planning permission, the Council will 
seek to ensure that drainage is effectively managed on the site. Any 
hard surface which results in material levels of water run-off into public 
highways will be refused. For this reason the Council would expect 
porous paving to be used. 

6.8.2 Excessive hard surfacing can be at the detriment of the amenity of an 
area. Your hard surface should be designed in a manner that limits the 
extent of hard landscaping required. Where it is deemed that the 
design and degree of hard surfacing is unsympathetic toward the 
character of an area, it will be considered unacceptable. 

6.8.3 If your property is located on a designated road (see page 25) you will 
be required to apply for planning permission to construct a new 
vehicular access (dropped kerb). Planning permission will only be 
granted if there are no adverse highway or pedestrian safety 
implications. An existing hard-surface capable of accommodating a car 
without resulting in obstruction to the pedestrian highway will be 
required. Other factors that will be considered include the distance from 
the proposed crossover to existing junctions, the presence of trees that 
may require removal and the presence of street furniture which may 
compromise highway sight lines. Please note that you will also require 
permission from the Highways Department to install the access (see 
contact details below). 

The construction of hard surface for purposes that are incidental to the 
enjoyment of the dwelling will not normally require planning permission. 
However, this is on the condition that where: 

o The hard surface will be situated on land between the principal elevation of 
the house and the highway and; 

o The area covered by the hard surface would exceed 5 square metres. 

the hard surface is constructed from porous materials or should be designed so to 
direct run-off water to a surface which is porous or permeable within the 
boundaries of the dwelling.  

Page 40



 21

6.9     Fencing/Boundary Enclosure and Other Alterations 

 

6.9.1 If the enclosure you wish to build requires planning permission, you 
must pay careful attention to the design. Fences and walls can have a 
significant impact upon the street scene. Any enclosure which is 
overbearing or has a material impact upon the openness of an area will 
be considered unacceptable. The design must also be in keeping with 
the character of the area. The choice of materials will be a key planning 
consideration.                                                                                                                       

6.9.2 Particularly high fences can impact upon your neighbour’s amenity. 
Fencing which is adjacent to neighbouring windows should take into 
the potential impact. Any enclosure which results in a material loss of 
daylight, sunlight or outlook to adjacent properties will be considered 
unacceptable.  

6.9.3 The Borough is keen to support its community to install their own 
micro-renewable devices - whether it is at home or to support their 
business - and help the borough reduce its carbon footprint and 
encourage the community to come more energy aware. 

6.9.4 Householders have a degree of permitted development rights 
regarding the installation of a variety of equipment that is for domestic 
energy generation. If you require advice as to whether or not your 
proposal requires planning permission you should development 
management team (contact details below). 

6.9.5 In circumstances where planning permission is required, you should 
ensure that equipment is positioned so as to minimise the impact it has 
upon your neighbour’s amenity. If there would be a material loss of 
amenity resulting from your equipment then it will be considered 
unacceptable.  

6.9.6 In many cases, satellite dishes will not require planning permission. 
You should check with the development management team as to 
whether or not your dish needs permission. In those cases where 
permission is required, you should ensure that the dish is not 
positioned so as to be visually intrusive from any public place. Any 

If you wish to erect or construct a gate, fence, wall or other form of 
enclosure will require planning permission if any one or more of the 
following apply: 

o The height of the gate, fence, wall or other form of enclosure would be 
constructed adjacent to a highway used by vehicular traffic and have a 
height in excess of one metre above ground level. 

o The height of the gate, fence, wall or other form of enclosure would 
have a height in excess of two metres above ground level. 

Page 41



 22

satellite dish which has a detrimental impact upon the street scene will 
be considered unacceptable. 

7. Further Information and Advice 

7.1.1 When assessing an application the Council will consider objections 
from neighbours, and for this reason it may be helpful from the outset 
to discuss your proposals first with any neighbour who may be 
affected. This can avoid problems later. 

7.1.2 The Council strongly advises using a reputable architect and/or planning 
agent. Inaccurate and unclear plans or incomplete applications will delay 
your application.  

 
7.1.3 Officers from the Council's Development Management service are always 

on hand to discuss proposals with applicants before a formal planning 
application is submitted. Indeed this is encouraged especially if you are 
unsure as to whether planning permission is required or not. 

 
7.1.4 Some extensions will also require you to apply for a building notice. You 

should seek advice directly from the Building Control team whose details 
are found below. 

 
7.1.5 Failure to obtain planning permission or building an extension differently to 

what you have had approved can result in the Council undertaking 
enforcement action against you. If you have concerns that a neighbour is 
building an extension without the relevant planning permission, you should 
contact the Council’s Enforcement Team whose details are listed below.   

 
Barking and Dagenham Local Development Framework and related documents  
 
It is also important to note that other policies and guidance contained in the 
borough's Local Development Framework and related documents may apply.  
 

• For example buildings in Conservation Areas will require additional 
consideration, including detailed design matters in relation to alterations 
and extensions and the protection of trees.  

• If your property is a listed building, Listed Building Consent will be required 
for any alterations, extensions or demolition, both internal and external.  

• Tree preservation orders may apply to trees within your site and the 
Council's tree officer will be happy to identify these and give advice on 
what you can and can't do.  

 
The relevant policies within the Local Development Framework are in the 
Borough Wide Development Policies document: 
 

• BR3 Greening the Urban Environment 
• BR4 Water Resource Management 
• BP2 Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings 
• BP8 Protecting Residential Amenity 
• BP11 Urban Design 

Page 42



 23

8. Contacts for further advice 
 
Development Management 
3rd Floor Maritime House 
1 Linton Road 
Barking 
IG11 8HG 
 
Telephone: 0208 227 3933 
Fax: 0208 227 3490 
Email: planning@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Building Control  
4th floor Maritime House 
1 Linton Road 
Barking 
IG11 8HG 
 
Telephone:0208 227 3933 
Fax: 0208 227 3490 
Email: planning@lbbd.gov.uk  
 
Environmental Enforcement Services 
4th floor Maritime House 
1 Linton Road 
Barking 
IG11 8HG 
 
Telephone: 0208 227 3777 
Email: planning@lbbd.gov.uk  
 
Arboriculturist – Customer Services 
4th floor Maritime House 
1 Linton Road 
Barking 
IG11 8HG 
 
Telephone: 0208 227 3556 
Email: colin.richardson@lbbd.gov.uk 
 
Highways (Dropped-Kerb Enquiries) – Customer Service 
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham 
Civic Centre 
Rainham Road North 
Dagenham 
RM10 7BN 
 
Telephone: 020 8215 3000 
Fax: 020 8227 5184 
Email: 3000direct@lbbd.gov.uk

Page 43



 24

Appendix 1 - Classified Roads 
 
Planning permission is required to install a vehicle access (dropped-kerb) on 
the roads listed below. You will also need to contact the Highways department 
(contact above) for permission to install the crossover. 
 
Trunk Roads 
 
1. A406 North Circular 
2. A13 (Alfreds Way and Ripple Road) 
3. A12 (Eastern Avenue) 
 
Designated Roads 
 
1. Abbey Road 
2. Ballards Road 
3. Fanshawe Avenue 
4. Green Lane 
5. Heathway 
6. Lodge Avenue (between A13 and Junction of Porters Avenue) 
7. Longbridge Road 
8. Porters Avenue 
9. Relief Road 
10. Ripple Road 
11. St. Pauls Road 
12. Whalebone Lane North (North of Eastern Avenue) 
13. Wood Lane (up to Green Lane crossroads) 
14. Bennetts Castle Lane 
 
Principal Road 
 
1. High Road (Chadwell Heath) 
2. Rainham Road North 
3. Rainham Road South 
4. Whalebone Lane North (between Eastern Avenue and High Road) 
5. Whalebone Lane South 
6. Wood Lane (between Green Lane crossroads and Rainham Road North) 

Page 44



 25

Appendix 2 –Revocation of Permitted Development rights 
 
Certain dwellings within the Borough have had some of their Permitted 
Development (PD) rights removed. The improvement, enlargement and 
extension of these properties may require planning permission even if your 
proposal satisfies the PD criteria. 
 
The list below highlights those parts of the Borough where the removal of PD 
rights is extensive. The vast majority of houses with such restrictions have 
been constructed within the last 25 years. This list is not definitive and contact 
with the Council is recommended to confirm whether this would apply to your 
property. 
 
1. Barking Reach 
2. Rush Green (Former Rush Green Hospital site) 
3. Former garages rear of 181-189 Wilmington Gardens 
4. Former RAOB Premises, Winding Way 
5. Former Readers Haulage Site, 320 Rainham Road 
6. The Foyer, Church Road 
7. Former Sacred Heart School Site, Goresbrook Road 
8. Former Goresbrook School Site, Goresbrook Road 
9. Former Dagenham Priory School Site, School Road 
 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



THE EXECUTIVE 
 

3 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
Title:  2010/11 Local Implementation Plan -
Funding Submission. 
 

For Decision  

 
Summary:  
 
The Local Implementation Plan (LIP) is the Council's five year plan for transport in 
Barking and Dagenham.  The plan was approved by the Council in June 2007 and the 
Mayor of London in November 2007. 
 
Every year Transport for London (TfL) awards capital funding to London boroughs to 
spend on projects to improve local transport. In May 2009 the Mayor of London 
announced £155 million of funding for the financial year 2010/11, which includes just over 
£2.5 million for Barking and Dagenham. 
 
The Council is required to develop a programme of works related to this budget for 
submission to TfL.  A detailed programme, proposing a range of transport improvement 
schemes (including road safety, traffic management schemes, highways maintenance 
and cycling schemes).  During preparation of the bid the views of both departments and 
Cabinet Members were sought.  Due to the time constraints the proposals were submitted 
to TfL on 21 September 2009, with the proviso that they were still subject to approval by 
the Council’s Executive.   
 
Details of the schemes that the Council is proposing under the Maintenance, Corridor, 
Neighbourhood and Smarter Travel programmes, which are part of the overall bid, are set 
out in Appendix A. 
 
The Executive is now asked to consider and approve the Council's 2010/11 LIP 
submission to TfL.  
 
Wards Affected: All Wards 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
The Executive is recommended to agree the Council's 2010/11 Local Implementation 
Plan submission to Transport for London. 
 
Reason(s) 
 
To enable the Council to deliver a range of transport improvement schemes in 2010/11, 
which helps deliver to a greater or lesser extent all six of the Community Plan priorities.    
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

Page 47



Implications 
 
Financial 
A detailed set of proposals outlining the main measures to be implemented is included in 
the report.  
 
Further work is required to ascertain the specific costs associated with implementing the 
full programme.  However, it is envisaged that all planned improvements can be delivered 
within the existing funding allocation of around £2.5 million.  
 
Whilst it is likely that there will be some ongoing revenue implications associated with the 
programme (e.g. infrastructure maintenance costs), these are difficult to quantify as in 
many cases it is not yet clear what specific measures will be implemented.  In some 
cases, projects are one off events and therefore have no associated whole life costs. In 
other cases, schemes are, in effect, 'replacements' for existing infrastructure which would 
otherwise require maintaining.  In general, very little of what is proposed represents 'new' 
infrastructure. Where this is the case, high quality design, durable products and well 
engineered schemes should ensure that short term maintenance is not required. In most 
circumstances, ongoing maintenance costs will be met through the existing highway 
maintenance programme budgets with additional external funding sought where possible. 
 
Legal 
The LIP is a statutory document required under Part IV, Chapter I of the Greater London 
Authority (GLA) Act 1999.  The LIP sets out how Barking and Dagenham proposes to 
implement the Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy between 2005/6 and 2010/11.  The 
annual LIP submission is the method through which funding is obtained from TfL each 
year. 
 
TfL provides financial assistance to boroughs under section 159 of the GLA Act 1999. 
Under the terms of this Act, the financial assistance provided must be for a purpose 
which, in TfL’s opinion, is conducive to the provision of safe, integrated, efficient and 
economic transport facilities or services to, from or within Greater London.  
 
In order to ensure this purpose is met when exercising it’s functions under section 159, 
TfL will have regard to the following matters in relation to activities undertaken by the 
Borough: 
• Use of funding provided by TfL for the programmes or proposals for which the funding 

was provided  
• If there has been removal or substantial alteration of works carried out or infrastructure 

installed, with the benefit of TfL funding, without the prior written consent of TfL 
• Implementation of the themes, policies, proposals and manifesto commitments of the 

Mayor (Way to Go, London Plan Statement of Intent, Transport Strategy Statement of 
Intent and subsequent revision of MTS) 

• Its response to reasonable TfL requests for project management reports and other 
information relating to the provision of financial assistance by TfL. 

 
The decision to submit the LIP is an executive decision During preparation of the bid the 
views of both departments and Cabinet Members were sought.  Due to the time 
constraints the proposals were submitted to TfL on 21 September 2009, with the proviso 
that they were still subject to approval by the Council’s Executive.   
 
The Executive is now asked to confirm the bid as set out in the report.  

Page 48



 
Contractual 
No specific implications. 
 
Risk Management 
Failure to submit a funding submission to TfL could result in the Council’s funding 
allocation for 2010/11 being withdrawn and the Council having to bare the full costs of 
any planned transport schemes.  
 
Staffing 
No specific implications. 
 
Customer Impact 
The schemes in the LIP submission will assist in the delivery of all the Community Plan 
priorities and therefore have a positive impact on those who use transport in the borough. 
In particular, the programme will help deliver the key objectives of making sure people 
feel safer in their neighbourhoods, making sure our streets and public spaces are cleaner, 
tidier and greener and making sure everyone can access all public services.  In addition, 
the schemes will address the high level Mayoral outcomes as set out in the draft Mayor’s 
Transport Strategy, including smoothing traffic flow, enhancing streetscapes, facilitating 
an increase in active travel, reducing the numbers of road traffic casualties and reducing 
CO2 emissions.  
 
Safeguarding Children 
No specific implications. 
 
Crime and Disorder 
Personal safety has been highlighted as a concern by both users and non-users of the 
local transport network.  The Council is addressing these concerns by: 
a) Working with TfL to ensure that roads and footways are well maintained and free from 

obstructions; and 
b) Actively promoting the benefits of the cycling and walking network to all sectors of the 

community, with the aim of increasing the number of people using it. 
 
Property / Assets 
No specific implications. 
 
Options appraisal 
There are no alternative options available. The current programme represents the best 
option in terms of delivery of both the Council’s and the London Mayor’s priorities and 
objectives as well as delivering the best value for money.  Failure to submit a programme 
to TfL could result in the withdrawal of the funding allocation and the Council having to 
fund the delivery of the schemes from its own resources.   
 
Head of Service: 
 
Jeremy Grint  
 
 

Title: 
 
Head of Regeneration and 
Economic Development 
 

Contact Details: 
 
Tel: 020 8227 2443 
Fax: 020 8227 3490 
E-mail: jeremy.grint@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

Page 49



Report Author: 
 
Tim Martin 

Title: 
 
Manager – Transport 
Planning and Policy; 
Regeneration and Economic 
Development 
 

Contact Details: 
 
Tel: 020 8227 3939 
Fax: 020 8227 3490 
E-mail: timothy.martin@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 
1.  Background 
 
1.1 The Local Implementation Plan (LIP) is the Council's five year plan for transport in 

Barking and Dagenham.  The plan sets out the local transport policies and 
proposals that will implement, at a borough level, the Mayor of London's Transport 
Strategy. The plan was approved by the Council in June 2007 and the Mayor of 
London in November 2007. 

 
1.2 Every year Transport for London (TfL) awards capital funding to London boroughs 

to spend on projects to improve local transport. In May 2009 the Mayor of London 
announced £155 million of funding for the financial year 2010/11, which includes 
just over £2.5 million for Barking and Dagenham.  The Council is required to 
develop a programme of works related to this budget for submission to TfL. 

  
2. Report detail 
 
2.1.1 TfL, in partnership with the 33 London Boroughs, has been working to reform the 

LIP funding system to reduce bureaucracy, increase certainty of funding levels and 
to provide boroughs with more freedom/flexibilities on how the money is spent.  A 
number of key changes have been introduced, including: 

 
• Reduction from 23 programmes to 5 (Maintenance, Corridors, Neighbourhoods, 

Smarter Travel and Area Based Schemes); 
 

• Funding for Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Smarter Travel programmes 
allocated using a needs based formula (endorsed by London Councils 
Transport and Environment Committee and approved by the Mayor); 
 

• £100,000 per borough for use on Local Transport Projects of their choice; 
 

• Longer term funding commitment; 
 

• Reduced requirements on details to be submitted by boroughs to TfL. 
 
2.2 Funding Allocation 
 
2.2.1 The total LIP budget for 2010/11 is £155 million, of which the Council has been 

awarded around £2.5 million. The breakdown of the allocation for 2010/11 across 
London and for Barking & Dagenham is set out below: 

 

Page 50



New 
Programme 

Old 
Programme 

London 
wide 

Allocation 
(£ms) 

 

LBBD 
Allocation 

(£000s) 

Key Outputs/ 
Outcomes 

Maintenance Bridge 
Strengthening 
& 
Assessment, 
Principal Road 
Renewal  

22.3 347* Focus on ensuring 
the network is in a 
good state of 
repair. 
 

Corridors Bus Priority, 
Bus Stop 
Accessibility, 
LCN+, 
Cycling, 
Walking, Local 
Safety 
Schemes 

50.0 1064 Develop holistic 
schemes for key 
corridors that 
address issues 
relating to the 
smoothing of traffic 
flow, bus reliability, 
safety, cycling (inc 
cycle parking and 
Olympic cycle 
networks), public 
realm and removal 
of clutter. 
  

Neighbourhoods 20mph Zones, 
Freight, 
Regeneration, 
Environment, 
Accessibility, 
Controlled 
Parking Zones  

35.1 764 Local area 
improvements 
including CPZs, 
20mph zones, and 
also work on 
Legible London, 
reduction in street 
clutter, and an 
expansion of the 
number of electric 
charging points. 
 
 
 

Smarter Travel School Travel 
Plans, Travel 
Awareness, 
Education, 
Training & 
Publicity, 
Workplace 
Travel Plans 

12.5 231 Including travel 
plans for schools, 
hospitals and 
businesses, plus 
more travel 
awareness 
initiatives 
potentially 
integrating with 
corridor or 
neighbourhood 
programmes. 
 

Area Based 
Schemes 

Station 
Access, 
Streets for 
People, Town 
Centres 

24.0 No set 
allocation – 
Boroughs to 
submit any 
proposals 

Including shared 
space projects and 
public realm 
improvements. 
 

Page 51



New 
Programme 

Old 
Programme 

London 
wide 

Allocation 
(£ms) 

 

LBBD 
Allocation 

(£000s) 

Key Outputs/ 
Outcomes 

independently 
of LIP 
submission 

  
Local Transport 
Funding 
 

- 3.3 0.1 - 

Signals 
 

- 7.8 No set 
allocation – 
up to 6 signal 
schemes can 
be funded 

 

- 

Total 
 

- 155.0 2506 - 

 * Denotes funding allocation for Principal Road Renewal Schemes 
   
2.3 Policy Context 
 
2.3.1 The Mayor of London has made commitments to a range of specific local transport 

interventions which should be addressed in borough’s LIP programmes.  They 
include: 

 
• Implementation of more shared space and simplified streetscape projects 

including de-cluttering, removing unnecessary guard railing and lines and 
improved streetscape design; 

• Increased provision for cyclists including providing more cycle parking and 
supporting the delivery of the Mayor’s cycle hire scheme, the provision of cycle 
highways and the development of cycle hubs; 

• Support for Electric Vehicles, including new charging points; 
• Provision of more Car Club bays; 
• Reducing unnecessary traffic signals; 
• Avoiding the use of road humps. 

 
2.3.2 In addition, proposed schemes must address the 23 high level Mayoral outcomes 

as set out in the Mayor’s Transport Strategy Statement of Intent.  
 
2.4 Detailed Programme  
 
2.4.1. Details of the schemes that the Council is proposing under the Maintenance, 

Corridor, Neighbourhood and Smarter Travel programmes are set out in Appendix 
A.  For each scheme an indication of costs and the measures proposed are given.  
It is considered that the measures proposed will go some way to address a variety 
of local issues whilst at the same time helping to deliver the Mayor’s priorities.  A 
programme summary is provided at table 1.   

 
2.4.2 A number of reserve schemes have been added to the programme.  Boroughs can 

include extra schemes that can be used for over programming purposes up to 20% 

Page 52



of their indicative allocation to cover the case where some identified schemes 
cannot be implemented. 

 
     Table 1 

2010/11 LIP Funding Submission Summary 
 

Scheme Name/ Location 
 

Ward(s) Affected Indicative 
Costs 

Maintenance Programme – Indicative Allocation £347,000 - TfL Recommended 
submission £434,000 (allows for 25% reserve) 
Porters Avenue (Lodge Avenue to Gale Street) Mayesbrook £155,000 
Northern Relief Road Abbey £279,000 
 Total £434,000 
Corridors Programme – Allocation £1,064,000 
Rainham Road Corridor (Between Wood Lane 
and Borough Boundary with LB Havering) 

Village, Heath and 
Eastbrook 

£450,000 

Green Lane Corridor (Between Wood Lane and 
Borough Boundary with LB Redbridge) 
 

Becontree, Valence 
and Whalebone 

£345,000 

Marks Gate to Chadwell Heath Walking/Cycling 
Corridor 

Chadwell Heath £90,000 

River Roding Cycling/Walking Corridor 
 

Abbey and Gascoigne £100,000 

Whalebone Lane Study (Between Junction with 
A12 and Wood Lane) 

Whalebone and 
Chadwell Heath 

£50,000 

Walking links to Ripple School Eastbury and 
Gascoigne 

£25,000 

 Total £1,060,000
Reserve Corridors Schemes – Reserve Limit £213,000 
Longbridge Road Cycling Corridor (Between 
Fanshawe Avenue and Wood Lane) 
 

Abbey, Longbridge, 
Becontree, Parsloes 
and Heath 

£110,000 

Barking Town Centre Traffic Modelling Study Abbey and Gascoigne £100,000 
 Total £210,000 
Neighbourhoods Programme – Allocation £764,000 
Becontree Neighbourhood Improvements (Area 
bounded by Valence Avenue, Longbridge Road 
and boundary with LB Redbridge) 

Becontree, Parsloes 
and Valence 

£310,000 

Creekmouth Area Improvements Thames £200,000 
Shopping Parades Improvements – High Road 
(Chadwell Heath) and 
Rush Green (Dagenham Road) 

Chadwell Heath, 
Whalebone and 
Eastbrook 

£250,000 

 Total £760,000 
Reserve Neighbourhoods Schemes – Reserve Limit £153,000 
Barking Town Centre Low Carbon Zone Abbey and Gascoigne £150,000 
 Total £150,000 
Smarter Travel Programme – Allocation £231,000 
School Travel Plans Borough wide £110,000 
Cycle Training Borough wide £65,000 
Workplace Travel Plans Borough wide £35,000 
Travel Awareness – Promotion and Events Borough wide £20,000 
 Total £230,000 
Reserve Smarter Travel Schemes – Reserve Limit £46,000 
Council Travel Plan Borough wide £45,000 
 Total £45,000 

Page 53



 
 
2.5 Next Steps 
 
2.5.1 TfL are currently assessing it to ensure it conforms with the Mayor’s 

Transport Strategy.  It is anticipated that the final allocations for the 
programme will be confirmed by TfL in December 2009. 

 
3. Links to Corporate and other Plans and Strategies  
 
3.1 The schemes in the LIP submission will assist in the delivery of all the 

Community Plan priorities, the Council’s Local Implementation Plan and the 
Mayor’s of London’s Transport Strategy. 

 
4. Consultees 
 
4.1 The following were consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 
 Councillors: 

Councillor L Smith – Leader 
 Councillor R Little – Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Culture and Sport 
 Councillor R Gill – Cabinet Member for Education and Children’s Wellbeing 
 Councillor G Bramley – Cabinet Member for Finance and Human Resources 
 Councillor H Collins – Cabinet Member for Adults and Public Health 
 Councillor S Carroll – Cabinet Member for Customer Services 
 Councillor M McCarthy - Cabinet Member for Regeneration 
 Councillor V Rush - Cabinet Member for Environment and Sustainability 
 Councillor P Waker – Cabinet Member for Housing 
 Councillor J Alexander – Cabinet Member for Safer Neighbourhoods and 

Communities 
  
 Chief Executive’s: 

Sue Lees - Divisional Director of Asset Management and Capital Delivery  
 Sharon Roots - Group Manager, Risk Management 
  
 Resources: 

Alex Anderson - Group Manager Finance (Regeneration and Housing Futures) 
 Yinka Owa - Legal Partner (Procurement, Property & Planning) 
 Andy Butler – Group Manager, Economic Development & Sustainable Communities 

 
 Adult and Community: 

Heather Wills - Head of Community Cohesion and Equalities 
 Glynis Rogers - Divisional Director of Community Safety and Neighbourhood 

Services 
   
 Customer Services: 
 Darren Henaghan - Head of Environmental and Enforcement Services 
 Mike Butler – Group Manager, Street Scene 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



 
 
5. Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 
5.1 The following papers / reports were used in the preparation of this report: 
 

• LIP Funding Guidance 2010/11 (Transition Year), Transport for London, 2009 
• Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy, Statement of Intent, Transport for London, 

2009 
• LBBD Local Implementation Plan, LBBD, 2007 

 
 
6. List of appendices: 

 
6.1 Appendix A:  LBBD 2010/11 LIP Funding Submission – Detailed Programme 

(attached). 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
LB

B
D

 2
01

0/
11

 L
IP

 F
un

di
ng

 S
ub

m
is

si
on

 –
 D

et
ai

le
d 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

 
 

Sc
he

m
e 

N
am

e/
 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
– 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

£3
47

,0
00

* -
 T

fL
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

su
bm

is
si

on
 £

43
4,

00
0 

(a
llo

w
s 

fo
r 2

5%
 re

se
rv

e)
 

 
P

or
te

rs
 A

ve
nu

e 
(L

od
ge

 A
ve

nu
e 

to
 G

al
e 

S
tre

et
) 

 

M
ay

es
br

oo
k 

C
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

 re
su

rfa
ci

ng
/re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
£1

55
,0

00
 

N
or

th
er

n 
R

el
ie

f 
R

oa
d 

 

A
bb

ey
 

C
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

 re
su

rfa
ci

ng
  

£2
79

,0
00

 

* D
en

ot
es

 fu
nd

in
g 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r P
rin

ci
pa

l R
oa

d 
R

en
ew

al
 S

ch
em

es
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
TO

TA
L

£4
34

,0
00

 
 

C
or

rid
or

s 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
– 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
£1

,0
64

,0
00

 
 

R
ai

nh
am

 R
oa

d 
C

or
rid

or
 

(B
et

w
ee

n 
W

oo
d 

La
ne

 a
nd

 
B

or
ou

gh
 

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
w

ith
 L

B
 

H
av

er
in

g)
 

 

V
ill

ag
e,

 H
ea

th
 

an
d 

E
as

tb
ro

ok
 

  

Th
is

 3
.3

km
 c

or
rid

or
 is

 a
 k

ey
 n

or
th

-s
ou

th
 ro

ut
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
ea

st
 o

f t
he

 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 a

nd
 in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

th
e 

ke
y 

tra
ns

po
rt 

lin
k 

of
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 E
as

t U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
S

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
se

ve
ra

l k
ey

 d
es

tin
at

io
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
C

iv
ic

 C
en

tre
, D

ag
en

ha
m

 &
 

R
ed

br
id

ge
 F

oo
tb

al
l C

lu
b 

th
e 

S
te

rli
ng

 In
du

st
ria

l E
st

at
e 

an
d 

D
ag

en
ha

m
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
P

oo
l, 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f l
oc

al
 s

ch
oo

ls
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 E
as

tb
ro

ok
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

.  
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f a

cc
id

en
t d

at
a 

ha
s 

re
ve

al
ed

 th
at

 ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

is
 a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 is

su
e 

al
on

g 
th

is
 ro

ut
e,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 R

ai
nh

am
 R

oa
d 

N
or

th
/O

xl
ow

 
La

ne
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

si
x 

co
lli

si
on

s 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
s,

 tw
o 

of
 w

hi
ch

 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 s
er

io
us

 in
ju

rie
s.

 A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 th
e 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

da
ta

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
re

ve
al

ed
 th

at
 

th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 h
i g

h 
in

ci
de

nc
e 

of
 c

ol
lis

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g
po

w
er

ed
-2

-w
he

el
er

s 
an

d 

£4
50

,0
00

 

Page 57



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

co
lli

si
on

s 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

at
 n

ig
ht

. A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

it 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
th

at
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

al
on

g 
th

e 
ro

ut
e 

ar
e 

m
ad

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

so
m

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 v
eh

ic
le

 s
pe

ed
s 

(s
uc

h 
as

 c
le

ar
er

 c
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

 m
ar

ki
ng

s 
an

d 
w

ar
ni

ng
 

si
gn

s)
, a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

tre
et

 li
gh

tin
g.

 
 Fo

llo
w

in
g 

fu
rth

er
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
ro

ut
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
ne

fit
 fr

om
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

fo
r c

yc
lis

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 n
ew

 
cy

cl
e 

la
ne

s,
 s

ec
ur

e 
cy

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 k
ey

 d
es

tin
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
le

ar
 s

ig
na

ge
. 

Th
is

 ro
ut

e 
w

ill
 li

nk
 d

ire
ct

ly
 in

to
 o

ur
 re

ce
nt

ly
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 c
yc

le
 ro

ut
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
or

ks
 w

ith
in

 T
he

 L
ey

s,
 B

al
la

rd
s 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
O

ld
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 P
ar

k.
 T

he
 m

ea
su

re
s 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
lo

ng
 th

is
 c

or
rid

or
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 b
et

w
ee

n 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 E
as

t 
S

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
th

e 
C

iv
ic

 C
en

tre
 a

nd
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
so

ut
h-

w
es

t o
f t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
cy

cl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
to

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 C

yc
le

 N
et

w
or

k 
P

lu
s 

R
ou

te
 o

n 
th

e 
A

13
06

.  
 R

ai
nh

am
 R

oa
d 

is
 a

ls
o 

a 
ke

y 
bu

s 
co

rri
do

r (
it 

is
 s

er
ve

d 
by

 R
ou

te
 1

03
 w

hi
ch

 ru
ns

 
be

tw
ee

n 
R

ai
nh

am
 a

nd
 R

om
fo

rd
). 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 g

iv
en

 to
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

si
gn

al
 

tim
in

gs
 a

t k
ey

 ju
nc

tio
ns

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
ro

ut
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
bu

s 
jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

es
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 

th
er

e 
is

 s
co

pe
 to

 in
st

al
l n

ew
/im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
po

in
ts

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 n
ea

r 
bu

s 
st

op
s,

 im
pr

ov
e 

st
re

et
 li

gh
tin

g 
an

d 
ro

ad
 m

ar
ki

ng
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

hi
gh

 in
ci

de
nc

e 
of

 p
ed

es
tri

an
 c

as
ua

lti
es

 (p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
lo

ng
 R

ai
nh

am
 R

oa
d 

S
ou

th
, w

he
re

 th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

22
 c

ol
lis

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
la

st
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 fo

ur
 o

f w
hi

ch
 re

su
lte

d 
in

 s
er

io
us

 
in

ju
rie

s)
. C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 g
iv

en
 to

 c
os

ts
/b

en
ef

its
 o

f i
ns

ta
llin

g 
sa

fe
ty

 
ca

m
er

as
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

ro
ut

e.
 B

us
 s

to
p 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ilit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

st
op

s 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
A

ct
 (D

D
A

) 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n.
 

 O
th

er
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 p

la
nn

ed
 in

cl
ud

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
w

al
ki

ng
 li

nk
s 

an
d 

fu
rth

er
 s

ta
tio

n 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

t y
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 le
ad

 to
 im

pr
ov

ed
 jo

ur
ne

y 

Page 58



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

qu
al

ity
 fo

r a
ll 

ro
ad

 u
se

rs
, b

ut
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 fo

r t
he

 d
is

ab
le

d.
 E

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f t

he
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

cl
ud

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l d

ro
pp

ed
 k

er
bs

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
ta

ct
ile

 
pa

vi
ng

 a
t c

ro
ss

in
gs

, r
em

ov
al

/re
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 s
tre

et
 fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

tre
et

 
lig

ht
in

g 
an

d 
de

st
in

at
io

n 
si

gn
ag

e.
  

 S
pe

ci
fic

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
, b

ut
 b

ro
ad

 c
os

ts
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

R
ou

te
 a

lig
nm

en
t a

nd
 d

et
ai

l d
es

ig
n 

£5
0,

00
0 

C
iv

il 
W

or
ks

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 in

 h
ou

se
 fe

es
 £

35
0,

00
0 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n,

 P
ub

lic
ity

 a
nd

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
£2

5,
00

0 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

ie
s 

£2
5,

00
0 

 
G

re
en

 L
an

e 
C

or
rid

or
 

(B
et

w
ee

n 
W

oo
d 

La
ne

 a
nd

 
B

or
ou

gh
 

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
w

ith
 L

B
 

R
ed

br
id

ge
) 

 

B
ec

on
tre

e,
 

V
al

en
ce

 a
nd

 
W

ha
le

bo
ne

 

R
oa

d 
sa

fe
ty

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 th
e 

ke
y 

dr
iv

er
 b

eh
in

d 
th

e 
G

re
en

 L
an

e 
co

rri
do

r 
sc

he
m

e.
 O

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
45

 c
ol

lis
io

ns
 a

lo
ng

 th
is

 ro
ut

e.
 

O
ne

 c
ol

lis
io

n 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 fa
ta

l i
nj

ur
y 

w
ith

 a
 fu

rth
er

 fo
ur

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 s

er
io

us
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

Fu
rth

er
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 th

e 
ac

ci
de

nt
 d

at
a 

ha
s 

re
ve

al
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 h
ig

h 
in

ci
de

nc
e 

of
 c

ol
lis

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 a
nd

 c
ol

lis
io

ns
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

at
 n

ig
ht

. T
he

 p
rin

ci
pl

e 
re

m
ed

ia
l m

ea
su

re
s 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
ne

w
/im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
dd

iti
on

 o
f a

nt
i-s

ki
d 

su
rfa

ci
ng

 a
nd

 re
vi

se
d 

si
gn

al
 ti

m
in

gs
 a

t k
ey

 ju
nc

tio
ns

. 
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 m
ea

su
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
bu

s 
st

op
 a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, i
m

pr
ov

ed
 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
de

-c
lu

tte
rin

g 
of

 fo
ot

w
ay

s 
(s

uc
h 

as
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

m
ov

al
/re

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 s

tre
et

 fu
rn

itu
re

) w
ill

 m
ak

e 
G

re
en

 L
an

e 
a 

m
or

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 
de

st
in

at
io

n,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 fo

r t
he

 d
is

ab
le

d.
 A

 re
vi

ew
 o

f w
ai

tin
g 

an
d 

lo
ad

in
g 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s

ig
na

l t
im

in
g 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

as
 a

 m
ea

ns
 o

f e
as

in
g 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e.

 T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
lo

ok
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo

r c
yc

lis
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 c

yc
le

 la
ne

s 
an

d 
cy

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g.

 
 S

pe
ci

fic
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

, b
ut

 b
ro

ad
 c

os
ts

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

£3
45

,0
00

 

Page 59



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

D
et

ai
l d

es
ig

n 
£3

0,
00

0 
C

iv
il 

W
or

ks
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
 h

ou
se

 fe
es

 £
27

5,
00

0 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n,
 P

ub
lic

ity
 a

nd
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

£2
0,

00
0 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s 
£2

0,
00

0 
 

M
ar

ks
 G

at
e 

to
 

C
ha

dw
el

l H
ea

th
 

W
al

ki
ng

/C
yc

lin
g 

C
or

rid
or

 
 

C
ha

dw
el

l H
ea

th
 

P
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t a
 1

.5
km

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

, d
ire

ct
, s

af
e,

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
cy

cl
in

g 
ro

ut
e,

 li
nk

in
g 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
tre

 a
t M

ar
ks

 G
at

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
sh

op
pi

ng
 a

re
a 

an
d 

tra
ns

po
rt 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
es

 o
f C

ha
dw

el
l H

ea
th

. T
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 le
d 

au
di

t u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 L

iv
in

g 
S

tre
et

s.
 T

he
 ro

ut
e 

w
ill

 
im

pr
ov

e 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 li
nk

s 
ut

ili
si

ng
 g

re
en

 s
pa

ce
s,

 p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 q

ui
et

er
 ro

ad
s,

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

a 
pl

ea
sa

nt
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t w
ith

in
 w

hi
ch

 to
 w

al
k 

an
d 

cy
cl

e.
 

 S
pe

ci
fic

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
, b

ut
 li

ke
ly

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 
fo

ot
w

ay
s,

 n
ew

/im
pr

ov
ed

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
si

gn
in

g,
 re

m
ov

al
 o

f s
tre

et
 c

lu
tte

r a
nd

 n
ew

 c
yc

le
 

pa
rk

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 B

ro
ad

 c
os

ts
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

R
ou

te
 A

lig
nm

en
t, 

D
et

ai
l D

es
ig

n,
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

£1
5,

00
0 

C
iv

il 
W

or
ks

, R
ou

te
 d

el
in

ea
tio

n 
an

d 
fe

es
 £

65
,0

00
 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s 
£1

0,
00

0 
 

£9
0,

00
0 

R
iv

er
 R

od
in

g 
C

yc
lin

g/
W

al
ki

ng
 

C
or

rid
or

 
 

A
bb

ey
 a

nd
 

G
as

co
ig

ne
 

 

Th
is

 ro
ut

e 
fo

rm
s 

pa
rt 

of
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t b
ei

ng
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
S

us
tra

ns
, L

B
 R

ed
br

id
ge

 a
nd

 L
B

 N
ew

ha
m

. I
t i

s 
ai

m
ed

 a
t p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
 le

is
ur

e 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g 
ro

ut
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
R

iv
er

 R
od

in
g.

 T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

he
 ro

ut
e 

is
 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

in
 B

ar
ki

ng
, b

ut
 is

 in
 n

ee
d 

of
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 
m

ee
t L

on
do

n 
C

yc
le

 D
es

ig
n 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
. A

dd
iti

on
al

 w
or

k 
w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
se

ct
io

n,
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
lin

ks
 to

 th
e 

ne
w

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

as
 o

f F
re

sh
 W

ha
rf 

an
d 

Je
nk

in
s 

La
ne

. T
he

 ro
ut

e 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 k

ey
 

ac
ce

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
to

 th
e 

B
ar

ki
ng

 R
iv

er
si

de
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

re
a 

an
d,

 a
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, t
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 O

ly
m

pi
c 

sh
oo

tin
g 

ve
nu

e 
at

 B
ar

ki
ng

 C
re

ek
as

 w
el

l a
s 

lin
ki

ng
 in

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 

£1
00

,0
00

 

Page 60



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

C
yc

le
 S

up
er

 H
ig

hw
ay

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

y 
Tf

L.
 

 B
ro

ad
 c

os
ts

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
C

iv
il 

W
or

ks
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
 h

ou
se

 fe
es

 £
80

,0
00

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n,
 P

ub
lic

ity
 a

nd
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

£1
0,

00
0 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
ie

s 
£1

0,
00

0 
 

W
ha

le
bo

ne
 L

an
e 

S
tu

dy
 (B

et
w

ee
n 

Ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 A
12

 
an

d 
W

oo
d 

La
ne

) 
 

W
ha

le
bo

ne
 a

nd
 

C
ha

dw
el

l H
ea

th
 

Th
e 

st
ud

y 
w

ill
 id

en
tif

y 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
is

su
es

, r
ed

uc
e 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d 
w

al
ki

ng
 ro

ut
es

 w
hi

ls
t i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
bu

s 
jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

es
 a

s 
a 

m
ea

ns
 o

f i
m

pr
ov

in
g 

lin
ks

 b
et

w
ee

n 
N

or
th

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 a

nd
 M

ar
ks

 G
at

e.
 

A
 k

ey
 fo

cu
s 

of
 th

e 
st

ud
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

A1
2/

W
ha

le
bo

ne
 L

an
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 s

uf
fe

rs
 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
pr

ob
le

m
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 a
t p

ea
k 

tim
es

. 
 Th

e 
br

oa
d 

co
st

s 
of

 th
e 

st
ud

y 
ar

e 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
R

ou
te

 A
lig

nm
en

t, 
D

et
ai

l D
es

ig
n,

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

£5
0,

00
0 

 

£5
0,

00
0 

W
al

ki
ng

 li
nk

s 
to

 
R

ip
pl

e 
S

ch
oo

l 
E

as
tb

ur
y 

an
d 

G
as

co
ig

ne
 

P
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

de
si

gn
at

e 
ke

y 
w

al
ki

ng
 ro

ut
es

 to
 R

ip
pl

e 
S

ch
oo

l f
ro

m
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
tia

l 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 o
f t

he
 ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
po

in
ts

. B
y 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 

lo
ca

l s
af

et
y 

co
nc

er
ns

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 p

ro
hi

bi
tin

g 
pe

op
le

 fr
om

 w
al

ki
ng

 to
 s

ch
oo

l w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 re
du

ce
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
at

 s
ch

oo
l p

ic
k 

up
 a

nd
 d

ro
p 

of
f t

im
es

 o
n 

th
e 

ou
ts

ki
rts

 o
f 

B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

. W
or

ks
 li

ke
ly

 to
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
de

lin
ea

tio
n 

of
 s

af
e,

 s
ec

ur
e,

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 a
nd

 w
el

l s
ig

ne
d 

ro
ut

es
.  

 
 S

pe
ci

fic
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

, b
ut

 b
ro

ad
 c

os
ts

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 
R

ou
te

 A
lig

nm
en

t, 
D

et
ai

l D
es

ig
n,

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
£5

,0
00

 
C

iv
il 

W
or

ks
, R

ou
te

 d
el

in
ea

tio
n 

an
d 

fe
es

 £
18

,0
00

 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

ie
s 

£2
,0

00
 

 

£2
5,

00
0 

Page 61



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

TO
TA

L
1,

06
0,

00
0 

 
R

es
er

ve
 C

or
rid

or
s 

Sc
he

m
es

 –
 R

es
er

ve
 L

im
it 

£2
13

,0
00

 
 

Lo
ng

br
id

ge
 R

oa
d 

C
yc

lin
g 

C
or

rid
or

 
(B

et
w

ee
n 

Fa
ns

ha
w

e 
A

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
W

oo
d 

La
ne

) 
 

A
bb

ey
, 

Lo
ng

br
id

ge
, 

B
ec

on
tre

e,
 

P
ar

sl
oe

s 
an

d 
H

ea
th

 
  

5.
3k

m
 le

ng
th

 o
f r

ou
te

 in
 n

ee
d 

of
 re

va
m

pi
ng

 fo
r c

yc
lis

ts
 w

ith
: 

• 
C

yc
le

 L
an

es
 re

-m
ar

ke
d 

to
 L

on
do

n 
C

yc
le

 D
es

ig
n 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

• 
P

ar
ki

ng
 b

ay
s 

re
m

ar
ke

d/
re

al
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
la

ne
s 

de
lin

ea
te

d 
ar

ou
nd

 th
em

, 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

a 
co

nt
in

ua
l u

sa
bl

e 
cy

cl
e 

la
ne

.  
• 

E
ns

ur
e 

si
gn

al
is

ed
 ju

nc
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

st
an

da
rd

 A
dv

an
ce

d 
S

to
p 

Li
ne

s 
fo

r c
yc

lis
ts

. 
• 

E
ns

ur
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

yc
le

 d
es

tin
at

io
n 

si
gn

ag
e 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
. 

 Th
es

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

w
ill

 li
nk

 in
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

s 
pr

io
rit

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 

pl
ac

e,
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
no

 d
et

rim
en

ta
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

ve
hi

cl
e 

m
ov

em
en

ts
/fl

ow
s 

or
 

ex
is

tin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
ys

, b
ut

 w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 c

yc
lis

t w
ith

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
us

ab
le

 s
pa

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
, p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
n 

id
ea

l c
yc

lin
g 

lin
k 

be
tw

ee
n 

B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 a
nd

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 (C
iv

ic
 C

en
tre

). 
 Th

is
 s

ch
em

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 th

e 
on

 g
oi

ng
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t M
ar

tin
s 

C
or

ne
r, 

lin
k 

in
to

 th
e 

ne
w

 E
LT

 ro
ut

es
 a

t B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
em

en
t t

he
 tw

o 
ot

he
r 

co
rr

id
or

 b
as

ed
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 a
lo

ng
 R

ai
nh

am
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

G
re

en
 L

an
e 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

im
ed

 
at

 e
nh

an
ci

ng
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

ar
te

rie
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 
 Th

is
 s

ch
em

e 
is

 a
 q

ui
ck

 w
in

, w
ith

 li
ttl

e 
de

si
gn

 w
or

k 
(w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

 
ho

us
e)

 a
nd

 w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 m

uc
h 

im
pr

ov
ed

 c
or

rid
or

 fo
r r

el
at

iv
el

y 
lit

tle
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

y 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 b

as
ic

 s
ig

na
ge

/m
ar

ki
ng

s 
ar

e 
re

al
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

re
vi

ta
lis

ed
. S

pe
ci

fic
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
, b

ut
 b

ro
ad

 c
os

ts
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

R
ou

te
 D

es
ig

n:
 £

10
,0

00
 

C
iv

il 
w

or
ks

 a
nd

 fe
es

 £
80

,0
00

 

£1
10

,0
00

 

Page 62



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
£1

0,
00

0 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

ie
s 

£1
0,

00
0 

 
B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 T

ra
ffi

c 
M

od
el

lin
g 

S
tu

dy
 

A
bb

ey
 a

nd
 

G
as

co
ig

ne
 

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
w

id
er

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
, B

ar
ki

ng
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tre
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 
to

 a
 m

as
si

ve
 re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

cu
ss

in
g 

on
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

 m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 b

us
in

es
s 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

re
ta

il 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

an
d 

ar
ou

nd
 6

00
0 

ne
w

 h
om

es
.  

 A
ll 

th
es

e 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r, 
an

d 
pa

tte
rn

 o
f t

ra
ve

l 
in

to
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
B

ar
ki

ng
. U

nt
il 

no
w

, t
ra

ns
po

rt 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

on
 a

 c
as

e 
by

 c
as

e 
ba

si
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

de
ve

lo
pe

r T
ra

ns
po

rt 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

r l
oc

al
is

ed
 

m
od

el
lin

g.
 H

ow
ev

er
, f

or
 th

e 
ar

ea
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 it
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
he

re
 w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
a 

w
or

ka
bl

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
la

nd
 u

se
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 a
nd

 tr
af

fic
 m

ea
su

re
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
m

on
st

ra
bl

e 
ab

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 lo

ca
l a

nd
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

hi
gh

w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
em

. 
 Th

er
e 

is
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

ly
, a

nd
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

ne
t e

ffe
ct

 o
f a

ll 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

po
sa

ls
 in

 B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

co
ns

id
er

 th
e 

w
id

er
 re

ac
hi

ng
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 a
ny

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

To
 d

o 
th

is
 w

ill
 

re
qu

ire
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 a

 ro
bu

st
, t

ac
tic

al
 tr

af
fic

/a
ss

ig
nm

en
t 

m
od

el
 fo

r B
ar

ki
ng

, t
ha

t c
an

 c
ap

tu
re

 a
nd

 m
ea

su
re

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 th

es
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

de
qu

at
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

po
te

nt
ia

l E
xa

m
in

at
io

ns
 in

 P
ub

lic
 o

f t
he

 B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n.

 
Th

e 
m

od
el

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ui
ta

bl
y 

ba
se

d 
to

 re
pr

es
en

t c
ur

re
nt

 o
r v

er
y 

re
ce

nt
 tr

af
fic

 
pa

tte
rn

s 
w

ith
 a

 fo
re

ca
st

in
g 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

fu
tu

re
 n

et
w

or
k 

ch
an

ge
s 

an
d 

de
m

an
d 

dr
iv

er
s 

to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

te
st

in
g 

of
 fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 s
ch

em
es

.  
 

£1
00

,0
00

 

TO
TA

L
£2

10
,0

00
 

 

Page 63



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

– 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

£7
64

,0
00

 
 

B
ec

on
tre

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

(A
re

a 
bo

un
de

d 
by

 V
al

en
ce

 
A

ve
nu

e,
 

Lo
ng

br
id

ge
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

bo
un

da
ry

 
w

ith
 L

B
 

R
ed

br
id

ge
) 

B
ec

on
tre

e,
 

P
ar

sl
oe

s 
an

d 
V

al
en

ce
 

 

A
re

a 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ch

em
e 

ai
m

ed
 a

t t
ac

kl
in

g 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 w

ith
in

 lo
ca

l n
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s.

 W
or

ks
 to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

cl
ud

e:
 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
co

nt
ro

ls
 to

 m
ee

t c
ur

re
nt

 n
ee

ds
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
t 

sh
op

s 
an

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 d

is
ab

le
d 

pa
rk

in
g)

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 

pa
rk

in
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

 (i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l p
er

m
its

/C
P

Zs
, w

he
re

 re
qu

ire
d)

. 
P

ot
en

tia
l t

o 
ro

ll 
ou

t a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ar
 c

lu
b 

ba
ys

 –
 A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e 

co
st

 £
60

,0
00

 
• 

R
an

ge
 o

f a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 fo
ot

w
ay

s/
cr

os
si

ng
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 fo

r m
ob

ili
ty

 im
pa

ire
d 

an
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 b

et
te

r r
ou

te
s 

to
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
lin

ks
 a

nd
 k

ey
 s

ho
pp

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
(e

.g
. r

em
ov

al
/re

al
ig

nm
en

t o
f s

tre
et

 c
lu

tte
r, 

im
pr

ov
ed

 s
ig

na
ge

 e
tc

) –
 A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e 

co
st

s 
£1

70
,0

00
 

• 
R

an
ge

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
m

an
ag

em
en

t/s
af

et
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 is
su

es
 o

f l
oc

al
is

ed
 

co
ng

es
tio

n,
 s

pe
ed

in
g,

 s
af

et
y 

co
nc

er
ns

 e
tc

. (
e.

g.
 th

ro
ug

h 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 o
ne

 
w

ay
 s

tre
et

s,
 2

0 
m

ph
 z

on
es

 e
tc

.) 
– 

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

co
st

s 
£8

0,
00

0 
 

£3
10

,0
00

 

C
re

ek
m

ou
th

 A
re

a 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

Th
am

es
 

 
C

re
ek

m
ou

th
 is

 a
 h

ea
vi

ly
 u

se
d 

in
du

st
ria

l e
st

at
e 

w
hi

ch
 is

 b
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
an

d 
by

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 B
ar

ki
ng

 R
iv

er
si

de
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

Th
e 

ar
ea

 s
uf

fe
rs

 
gr

ea
tly

 fr
om

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
of

 il
le

ga
l p

ar
ki

ng
, c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
a 

po
or

 p
ub

lic
 p

er
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

es
ta

te
. 

 U
si

ng
 fu

nd
in

g 
se

cu
re

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
LD

A
/E

R
D

F,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
al

re
ad

y 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

w
or

ks
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 re

al
m

 a
re

as
 in

 p
ar

ts
 o

f R
iv

er
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

Lo
ng

 R
ea

ch
 

R
oa

d.
 T

he
se

 in
iti

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 h

av
e 

so
ug

ht
 to

 c
om

ba
t t

he
 p

er
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

es
ta

te
, c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
ill

eg
al

 p
ar

ki
ng

 b
y 

bu
ild

in
g 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s,
 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
st

re
et

 li
gh

tin
g,

 tr
ee

 p
la

nt
in

g 
an

d 
re

su
rfa

ci
ng

 o
f t

he
 fo

ot
w

ay
s.

 It
 is

 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 a
re

a 
w

ou
ld

 b
en

ef
it 

fro
m

 fu
rth

er
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l/p

ub
lic

 re
al

m
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

it 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
th

at
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

fu
nd

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 

£2
00

,0
00

 

Page 64



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

LI
P

 s
ub

m
is

si
on

 fo
r 2

01
0/

11
. 

 S
pe

ci
fic

 m
ea

su
re

s 
to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
, b

ut
 li

ke
ly

 to
 in

cl
ud

e 
ne

w
 fo

ot
pa

th
s,

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
st

re
et

 li
gh

tin
g,

 n
ew

 s
tre

et
 fu

rn
itu

re
, a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

po
in

ts
. B

ro
ad

 c
os

ts
 

es
tim

at
ed

 a
t a

ro
un

d 
£2

00
,0

00
 to

 c
ov

er
 d

es
ig

n,
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 
 

S
ho

pp
in

g 
P

ar
ad

es
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 –
 

H
ig

h 
R

oa
d 

(C
ha

dw
el

l H
ea

th
) 

an
d 

R
us

h 
G

re
en

 
(D

ag
en

ha
m

 
R

oa
d)

 
 

C
ha

dw
el

l H
ea

th
, 

W
ha

le
bo

ne
 a

nd
 

E
as

tb
ro

ok
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
£1

m
 in

 2
00

8 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

5 
lo

ca
l s

ho
pp

in
g 

pa
ra

de
s 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 In
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f c
as

es
 th

e 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
se

 p
ar

ad
es

 p
re

se
nt

s 
a 

ve
ry

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

ag
e 

de
te

rr
in

g 
in

ve
st

m
en

t a
nd

 fa
ils

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 h

av
e 

pr
id

e 
in

 th
ei

r s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

s.
 It

 is
 p

ro
po

se
d 

to
 u

til
is

e 
a 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 L
IP

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 

en
ab

le
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 w
or

k 
on

 th
e 

C
ha

dw
el

l H
ea

th
 H

ig
h 

R
oa

d 
sh

op
pi

ng
 

pa
ra

de
 a

nd
 to

 c
om

m
en

ce
 w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 R
oa

d 
sh

op
pi

ng
 p

ar
ad

e.
   

 
 In

 b
ot

h 
ar

ea
s 

w
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 re
al

m
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
sh

op
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 h

al
t t

he
 d

ec
lin

e 
of

 th
es

e 
lo

ca
lly

 im
po

rta
nt

 p
ar

ad
es

. T
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 w

or
ks

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

ne
w

 s
tre

et
 fu

rn
itu

re
, i

m
pr

ov
ed

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

(p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 fo
r d

is
ab

le
d 

us
er

s)
, t

re
e 

pl
an

tin
g 

an
d 

re
m

ed
ia

l w
or

ks
 to

 p
av

em
en

ts
. 

 Tf
L 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
£1

50
,0

00
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
C

ha
dw

el
l H

ea
th

 s
ho

pp
in

g 
pa

ra
de

 s
ch

em
e 

in
 

20
08

/0
9.

 A
 fu

rth
er

 £
15

0,
00

0 
is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

in
 2

00
9/

10
. 

£1
00

,0
00

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ea

rm
ar

ke
d 

fo
r w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
D

ag
en

ha
m

 R
oa

d 
sc

he
m

e.
 

 

£2
50

,0
00

 

TO
TA

L
£7

60
,0

00
 

 
R

es
er

ve
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s 
Sc

he
m

es
 –

 R
es

er
ve

 L
im

it 
£1

53
,0

00
 

 B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 L
ow

 
A

bb
ey

 a
nd

 
G

as
co

ig
ne

 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
lin

ke
d 

to
 B

ar
ki

ng
’s

 d
es

ig
na

tio
n 

as
 a

 L
ow

 
C

ar
bo

n 
Zo

ne
. M

ea
su

re
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
S

ta
tio

n,
 

£1
50

,0
00

 

Page 65



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

C
ar

bo
n 

Zo
ne

 
 

S
ol

ar
 P

ow
er

ed
 S

tre
et

 S
ig

na
ge

 fo
r k

ey
 s

ig
ns

 in
 a

nd
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
Lo

w
 C

ar
bo

n 
Zo

ne
, 

ne
w

 c
yc

le
 ra

ck
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ne

w
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
t B

ar
ki

ng
 s

ta
tio

n,
 c

yc
le

 tr
ai

ni
ng

, n
ew

 
si

gn
ag

e 
di

sp
la

yi
ng

 w
al

ki
ng

/c
yc

lin
g 

tim
es

 to
 k

ey
 d

es
tin

at
io

ns
 in

 a
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

, c
ar

 c
lu

b 
ba

ys
 a

nd
 e

le
ct

ric
 v

eh
ic

le
 re

ch
ar

ge
 p

oi
nt

s.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
pl

an
tin

g 
of

 m
at

ur
e 

st
re

et
 tr

ee
s 

in
 k

ey
 p

ub
lic

 a
re

as
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
sh

ad
e,

 im
pr

ov
e 

ai
r q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
. 

 
TO

TA
L

£1
50

,0
00

 
 

Sm
ar

te
r T

ra
ve

l P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

– 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

£2
31

,0
00

 
 

S
ch

oo
l T

ra
ve

l 
P

la
ns

 
 

B
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

ch
oo

ls
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tra

ve
l p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
 o

n 
ou

r a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 to

 d
at

e.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 
du

rin
g 

20
08

/0
9 

m
an

y 
of

 o
ur

 s
ch

oo
ls

 re
po

rte
d 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

be
in

g 
br

ou
gh

t t
o 

sc
ho

ol
 b

y 
ca

r, 
so

m
e 

by
 a

s 
m

uc
h 

as
 2

0%
.  

 Fu
nd

in
g 

is
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
fo

r a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 in

iti
at

iv
es

/m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 2
01

0/
11

in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

• 
£1

0,
00

0 
to

 a
ss

is
t 5

5 
sc

ho
ol

s 
re

vi
ew

/re
w

rit
e 

th
ei

r t
ra

ve
l p

la
ns

. F
un

di
ng

 w
ill

 
co

ve
r c

os
t o

f s
up

pl
y 

co
ve

r a
nd

 ro
om

 h
ire

 fo
r w

or
ks

ho
ps

. 
• 

£2
,0

00
 to

 a
ss

is
t 5

 s
ch

oo
ls

 p
ro

du
ce

 n
ew

 tr
av

el
 p

la
ns

. F
un

di
ng

 w
ill

 c
ov

er
 c

os
t o

f 
su

pp
ly

 c
ov

er
. 

• 
£3

5,
00

0 
to

w
ar

ds
 ru

nn
in

g/
pr

om
ot

in
g 

W
al

k 
on

 W
ed

ne
sd

ay
 (W

O
W

) c
am

pa
ig

n 
at

 
sc

ho
ol

s.
 

• 
£1

3,
00

0 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f p
ro

du
ci

ng
 a

 s
ch

oo
ls

 tr
av

el
 m

ag
az

in
e 

an
d 

ru
nn

in
g 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 tr

av
el

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

ev
en

ts
 fo

r p
up

ils
. 

• 
£5

0,
00

0 
fo

r S
m

al
l G

ra
nt

s 
Fu

nd
in

g.
 M

at
ch

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r r

an
ge

 o
f s

m
al

l s
ca

le
 

ph
ys

ic
al

 m
ea

su
re

s 
(e

.g
. c

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

, s
ig

na
ge

 e
tc

.) 
  

£1
10

,0
00

 

Page 66



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

C
yc

le
 T

ra
in

in
g 

B
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

dr
iv

e 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
cy

cl
in

g 
as

 a
 h

ea
lth

y 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

od
e 

of
 

tra
ve

l, 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
s 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

cy
cl

e 
tra

in
in

g 
fo

r c
yc

lis
ts

 o
f a

ll 
ag

es
. F

un
di

ng
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
fo

r t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

• 
£4

5,
00

0 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 o
ur

 o
n 

go
in

g 
w

or
ks

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l s
ch

oo
ls

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

N
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

d 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 L

ev
el

s 
1,

 2
 a

nd
 3

. S
ch

oo
ls

 a
w

ar
de

d 
B

ik
e 

A
bi

lit
y 

(5
 s

ch
oo

ls
 w

ill
 b

e 
an

no
un

ce
d 

in
 th

e 
au

tu
m

n)
, a

nd
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 
sc

ho
ol

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
.  

• 
£1

5,
00

0 
fo

r t
he

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f A
du

lt 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 C

ou
rs

es
 fo

r r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
 th

os
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 w
ith

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

cy
cl

e 
tra

in
in

g 
co

ur
se

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t t
o 

ac
tiv

el
y 

pu
rs

ue
 th

ei
r p

la
ns

.  
• 

£5
,0

00
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 e
ve

nt
s 

fo
r a

ll 
w

ith
in

 lo
ca

l p
ar

ks
/o

pe
n 

sp
ac

es
. 

 

£6
5,

00
0 

W
or

kp
la

ce
 T

ra
ve

l 
P

la
ns

 
 

B
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
In

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

Th
am

es
 G

at
ew

ay
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

n 
N

et
w

or
k 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

se
ek

in
g 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
se

s 
to

 h
el

p 
th

em
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

t w
or

kp
la

ce
 tr

av
el

 p
la

ns
 to

 h
el

p 
pr

om
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tra

ve
l o

pt
io

ns
 (s

uc
h 

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

cy
cl

in
g/

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
ar

 s
ha

rin
g)

 fo
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
. S

uc
h 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

sh
ow

n 
to

 re
su

lt 
in

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 tr
av

el
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
re

su
lt 

in
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

av
in

gs
 to

 b
us

in
es

se
s.

  
 Fu

nd
in

g 
is

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

fo
r a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 2
01

0/
11

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

• 
£3

0,
00

0 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 tr

av
el

 p
la

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Tf

L 
‘E

nt
er

pr
is

e’
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 F

un
di

ng
 w

ill
 c

ov
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t/ 
dr

af
tin

g 
of

 tr
av

el
 

pl
an

s,
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

 s
up

po
rt 

(£
10

,0
00

) a
nd

 a
n 

el
em

en
t o

f m
at

ch
 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 im

pl
em

en
t p

hy
si

ca
l m

ea
su

re
s 

(£
20

,0
00

). 
• 

£2
,5

00
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

tra
ve

l p
la

n 
‘n

et
w

or
ks

’, 
to

 s
ha

re
 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

on
e 

fo
r b

or
ou

gh
 o

ffi
ce

rs
, t

he
 N

H
S

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s.

 
• 

£2
,5

00
 fo

r t
ra

ve
l p

la
n 

m
ar

ke
tin

g/
pr

om
ot

io
na

l e
ve

nt
s.

 
 

£3
5,

00
0 

Page 67



 

 
Sc

he
m

e 
N

am
e/

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
 

 
W

ar
d(

s)
 A

ffe
ct

ed
 

Sc
he

m
e 

D
et

ai
ls

 
 

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
C

os
ts

 
 

Tr
av

el
 

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

– 
P

ro
m

ot
io

n 
an

d 
E

ve
nt

s 
 

B
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
Th

e 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 tr

av
el

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

m
or

e 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 w

ill
 c

om
pl

em
en

t t
he

 o
th

er
 

sm
ar

te
r t

ra
ve

l m
ea

su
re

s 
be

in
g 

pr
op

os
ed

. T
he

 m
ai

n 
ar

ea
s 

of
 fo

cu
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 ta
rg

et
ed

 p
ub

lic
ity

 a
ro

un
d 

is
su

es
 o

f s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

t, 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 ta

ck
lin

g 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 e
tc

. A
 ra

ng
e 

of
 a

dv
er

tis
in

g/
pr

om
ot

io
na

l 
m

at
er

ia
l w

ill
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 h

ig
h 

pr
of

ile
 e

ve
nt

s 
he

ld
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
nd

 re
si

de
nt

s.
 

 P
ro

po
se

d 
ev

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

B
ig

 G
re

en
 B

or
ou

gh
 D

ay
, W

al
k 

to
 W

or
k 

W
ee

k,
 B

ik
e 

W
ee

k 
an

d 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

M
ob

ili
ty

 W
ee

k.
 

   
   

£2
0,

00
0 

TO
TA

L
£2

30
,0

00
 

 
R

es
er

ve
 S

m
ar

te
r T

ra
ve

l S
ch

em
es

 –
 R

es
er

ve
 L

im
it 

£4
6,

00
0 

 
C

ou
nc

il 
Tr

av
el

 
P

la
n 

 

B
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
A

s 
a 

m
aj

or
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 c
iv

ic
 le

ad
er

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 le

ad
in

g 
by

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
by

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 it
s 

ow
n 

tra
ve

l p
la

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
ai

m
 o

f r
ai

si
ng

 tr
av

el
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tra
ve

l p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

m
on

gs
t i

ts
 s

ta
ff.

 
 Tr

av
el

 p
la

n 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
• 

P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 b

or
ou

gh
 tr

an
sp

or
t m

ap
s 

sh
ow

in
g 

ke
y 

w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

tra
ns

po
rt 

ro
ut

es
/fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(£
2,

50
0)

. 
• 

In
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 c

yc
le

 p
oo

l –
 ro

ll-
ou

t o
f c

yc
le

s 
at

 k
ey

 o
ffi

ce
s 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 (£
15

,0
00

). 
• 

S
ta

ff 
cy

cl
e 

tra
in

in
g 

(£
2,

50
0)

. 
• 

C
yc

lin
g/

w
al

ki
ng

 p
ro

m
ot

io
na

l e
ve

nt
s 

(£
5,

00
0)

. 
• 

N
ew

/im
pr

ov
ed

 c
yc

le
 p

ar
ki

ng
/e

qu
ip

m
en

t s
to

ra
ge

 lo
ck

er
s 

(£
20

,0
00

). 
 

 

£4
5,

00
0 

TO
TA

L
£4

5,
00

0 
 

Page 68



 

Local Transport Fund 
 
Every borough has been allocated £100,000 to spend on local transport 
schemes of their choice. The money can be used in a variety of ways 
including to fund studies to develop future schemes, to ‘top-up’ funding on 
current schemes or to implement one-off/stand alone projects that may come 
about as a result of a particular problem that has been raised. Projects being 
considered for 2010/11 include: 
 
• Roll-out of various Council travel plan measures such as a cycle pool 

(with associated cycle parking, equipment and training) (£45,000) 
• Investigative studies to inform future LIP Corridor/Neighbourhood based 

schemes. Focus will be on road safety/accessibility improvements 
(£20,000) 

• Ad-hoc measures such as pedestrian accessibility improvements, removal 
of street clutter (signage/furniture), implementation of CPZs, etc. 
(£35,000) 

 
 
Proposals for Area Based Schemes Programme 
 
Area based schemes aim to make a holistic change to a local area resulting in 
an improved quality of life for local communities. They also help to improve 
people’s movement within and beyond their local area. Transport for London 
allocates funding within this area to three types of scheme including Town 
Centres, Streets for People and Station Access. Subject to agreement with 
TfL, the Council is keen to take forward a number of large scale, regeneration 
based schemes through this programme, as set out in the table below:   
 

Scheme 
Name/ 

Location 
 

Scheme Details Indicative 
Costs 

Barking 
Station 
 

Barking Station is the borough’s main transport 
interchange, and is used by National Rail and London 
Underground services, buses, taxis, pedestrians and 
cyclists. The Council is keen to improve access 
arrangements and provide an improved interchange area 
outside the station that will be able to accommodate buses 
(including the new East London Transit service), improved 
cycle and pedestrian facilities, parking for disabled 
persons, improved signing and public transport information 
and a greatly enhanced public realm. 
 

£1,250,000 

Green Lane 
 

Green Lane is one of the larger shopping areas within 
Barking and Dagenham and would benefit from 
improvements to the public realm areas. Improvements to 
this area would consist of removal of street clutter 
(including realignment of street furniture), pavement 
works, CCTV, shop front improvements and tree planting. 
 

£1,000,000 

Page 69



 

Gale Street/ 
Woodward 
Road/ 
Hedgemans 
Road Area 
 

The Gale Street/ Woodward Road/ Hedgemans Road 
Area has been identified as a location that would benefit 
from further public realm improvement works. Its proximity 
to Becontree station means it has a particularly high 
pedestrian footfall. In addition, there are a number of 
significant proposed developments planned on various 
sites which would increase footfall further. Improvements 
to these streets would assist the policy objective of 
integrating new/existing communities and ensuring 
residents benefit from the wider regeneration of the area. 
 

£750,000 

Chadwell 
Heath 
Station 
 

The Council is keen to implement a Station Access 
scheme at Chadwell Heath to complement the work being 
undertaken to improve the public realm along the High 
Road and any potential future development of the station 
as part of the Crossrail scheme. Measures could include 
improvements to pedestrian crossing facilities and 
footways, side road entry treatments, cycle parking, CCTV 
cameras, direction signage/information and improved 
street lighting.  
 

£500,000 

 
 
 
 

Page 70



EXECUTIVE 
 

3 NOVEMBER 2009 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
Title:  Pre-Tender Report - Procurement and 
Management of Temporary Accommodation (Private 
Sector Licensing) for Homeless People 
 

For Decision  

Summary:  
 
This report presents proposals to tender a three year contract for procurement, 
management and maintenance of the existing temporary accommodation portfolio, which 
is used to accommodate homeless people. 
 
Wards Affected: None 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
The Executive is recommended to: 
 
(i) Approve the tender process for the procurement and management of temporary 

accommodation (private sector licensing scheme) as detailed in the report; 
 
(ii) In accordance with Constitution (Contract Rules 3.6), advise if Members wish to be 

involved with the packaging and specification of the above mentioned contract for this 
part of the works and decide the nature of their involvement in the subsequent 
evaluation and award of the contract; 

 
(iii) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Customer Services, in consultation 

with the Divisional Director of Corporate Finance and the Legal Partner, to appoint 
the preferred bidder (s) directly upon successful completion of the tender process. 

 
 
Reason(s) 
 
In order to accord with statutory obligations and enable the Council to commission value for 
money services. 
 
Implications 
 
Financial 
 
The service provides a statutory function as part of the Council’s homelessness strategy. 
In providing this type of accommodation the Council incurs the rental cost of renting 
through the private sector and finances this through rental charges to the homeless 
families placed in this type of accommodation, this charge is often funded by eligible 
housing benefits, there is however a shortfall in certain individual households 
circumstances.  
 
 
  

AGENDA ITEM 7

Page 71



The service is projected to pay £8.3m to landlords in 2009/10 for accommodation rented to 
provide private sector license.  This is based on 622 properties currently in use reducing to 
590 by 31 March 2010. 
 
The cost of procuring services under this framework will be met within existing Housing 
Advice Service General Fund budget. 
 
The Corporate Procurement team will be involved in the procurement in order to ensure 
that contract management principles are established to ensure initial and ongoing value for 
money over the life of the framework. 
 
Legal 
Under the Housing Act 1996 Part VII, the Council has a duty to provide temporary 
accommodation to homeless persons in the borough. 
 
The Council currently provides this service through 13 contractors.  The current scheme 
was approved by the Executive in 2002 but is not subject to formal contract.   
 
The Legal Partner has been consulted in the preparation of this report and comments 
Council officers intend to use the open tender procedure to appoint a number of 
contractors on a framework basis.  This proposal is in accordance with the Public 
Contracts Regulations and the Council’s Contract Rules and should ensure the Council 
achieves best value. 
 
The Legal Partners should be consulted on the procurement process and on the terms and 
conditions of the framework agreement.  
 
Contractual 
The current scheme was a model developed by Kensington and Chelsea and adopted by 
the Council with Executive approval.  The scheme is not currently subject to formal 
contract. There is an individual licence agreement for each property. 
 
The procurement process will be carried out in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, 
Public Contracts Regulations 2006 and the European Procurement Directive 2004/18/EC 
comprising of an advertisement in the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU). 
 
The ‘prior information notice’ has been published in the Official Journal on 29 July 2009. 
(full OJEU reference number: 2009/S143-209913) 
 
Risk Management 
There is no formal contract in place at present.  Continuing without a formal contract poses 
the following risks: 
 

• inequitable service to customers 
• limited regulatory consequence 
• inability by the Council to deal with problems in the service, as there is no legal 

certainty over the terms of the implied contract 
• legal challenge to the Council by organisations not currently used for this service 
• potential impact on the Council’s reputation by adverse publicity; and  
• loss of opportunity to reduce cost to the council by paying hand back fees.  

 
 
 

Page 72



Not proceeding with this contract process for the procurement and management of 
temporary accommodation (private sector license) would carry a risk that officers procure 
temporary accommodation from providers outside of the competitive framework, and with 
the possibility of extra cost or lesser quality than contracted providers.  Awarding the 
contract will ensure health and safety standards and ensure adherence to equality and 
diversity. 
 
Staffing 
No specific implications 
 
Customer Impact 
No specific implications 
 
Safeguarding Children 
No specific implications 
 
Crime and Disorder 
No specific implications 
 
Property / Assets 
No specific implications 
 
Options appraisal 
(i)  Do nothing.  The Council has a statutory duty to provide these services and so 

would be forced to continue with the current arrangement.  However, without 
formally tendered contracts in place, the Council is exposed to risk, and could be 
challenged on the basis of procurement law.  The contract value exceeds £400,000, 
and therefore in line with the ‘Contract Rules’ to do nothing is not appropriate. 

 
(ii)  Proceed with the tender in line with the Council’s Constitution, national and 

European Law.  After awarding the contract, the Council will be operating in 
accordance with relevant legislation, ensuring a fair, equitable and competitive 
service, benefiting the Council and the customer.  A three year contract is 
favourable as we are mindful there could be further changes in legislation / 
Government guidance relating to this statutory service.  Should further legislative 
changes be made, committing to a 3 year contract rather than a longer contract will 
enable swift resolution to ensure compliance with any such potential amendments 
to the Housing Act 1996, Part VII, as amended (homelessness legislation). 

  
Head of Service: 
Stephen Clarke 

Title: 
Divisional Director of 
Housing 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 (5709) 
Fax: 020 8227 (3779) 
E-mail: (stephen.clarke@lbbd.gov.uk ) 
 

Report Author: 
Anne Baldock 

Title: 
Group Manager. 
Housing Advice 
Service  

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 (5186) 
Fax: 020 8227 (3799) 
E-mail: (anne.baldock@lbbd .gov.uk) 
 

 
 

Page 73



 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The primary duty of the local authority in accordance with the Housing Act 1996 (as 

amended) is to prevent homelessness.  When this is not possible homeless 
persons who are eligible for assistance are in the first instance provided interim 
accommodation pending the outcome of their homeless assessment.  For those 
who are accepted as homeless, the duty to provide temporary accommodation 
continues until a final offer of secure accommodation has been made (Council or 
RSL let), or a qualifying offer (QO) via a private Landlord is agreed.  

 
1.2 There is a specific requirement upon the local authority to allocate temporary 

accommodation taking account of the ‘suitability order’.  This essentially requires us 
to consider the needs of each individual family when allocating temporary 
accommodation, in terms of size, location and medical / welfare grounds.  The 
temporary accommodation portfolio in the Council takes the form of the councils 
own hostel, at Boundary Road, and a handful of houses in multiple occupation 
(HMO's) across the borough.  Both of these are used for young single people. Self 
contained flats with on site support are provided by Look Ahead Housing 
Association (at Summerfield and Bevan House’s).  Private sector licensed 
accommodation (PSL) represents a significant proportion of our temporary 
accommodation portfolio, currently approximately 622 households. 

 
1.3 The current PSL scheme was a model developed by Kensington and Chelsea 

which this Council adopted in 2002.  Councils were encouraged to introduce PSL 
schemes by generous housing benefit levels for leased and licensed 
accommodation.  This initiative was endorsed by CLG as a means to cease use of 
bed and breakfast for families with children.   

 
1.4 In 2005 a report was approved by the Executive to tender for a Private Sector 

Leasing Scheme.  The portfolio was expected grow and longer term assurance of 
the availability of accommodation was recommended by the CLG.  However the 
tender process was aborted due to an unsuccessful company requesting a judicial 
review of the decision not to shortlist them.  The Company finally withdrew their 
claim and unreservedly apologised to the Council.  However, this was a very 
protracted process and, in the meantime the Government’s targets and approach to 
temporary accommodation changed significantly and the earlier specification was 
no longer relevant. 

 
1.5 The current government target for local authorities is to now reduce the use of 

temporary accommodation by 50% (of what it was in December 2004) by December 
2010.  The Councils target is 248.  As a result of lack of new supply and given the 
income generated under the current funding regime the number reported to CLG for 
June 2009 was 618.  The last realistic forward projection determined 500 as an 
achievable target by December 2010. 

 
2 Report detail 
 
2.1 When Private Sector Leasing and Licensing schemes were promoted as a good 

option for local authorities to use as temporary accommodation, the ‘cap’ for 
housing benefit to be paid was £357 per week.  This figure covered the rent to the 
landlord, the managing agent’s fee and the administration fee charged by the 
Council.  The cap was reduced to £303 per week two years ago.  In May 2009 it 

Page 74



was confirmed that with effect from April 2010 the cap will be ‘local housing 
allowance’ minus 10% plus £40.  Local Housing Allowance is the average market 
rent, in each bedroom size which fluctuates monthly.  This has significant 
implications for the Council, Managing Agents, and Landlords.  The implication for 
the Council has resulted in a pressure bid of 1.2 M for 2010/11, ongoing. 

 
2.2 Expenditure to temporary accommodation providers is estimated to be £8.3M for 

this financial year shared across thirteen current providers. 
 
2.3 In view of this change in funding, a range of options are being explored to reduce 

PSL units and minimise the impact on the Council’s budget.  One of the options is 
to refresh the tender process with a view to having a contract in place by April 2010.  
Also a briefing paper on the allocation of social housing and the link to temporary 
accommodation reduction is scheduled for discussion at ‘informal cabinet’ on 26 
October 2009.   

 
2.4 Notwithstanding this reduction strategy, it is prudent to tender this service to not 

only ensure compliance with EU regulations, and to unify service standards across 
all accommodation providers but to drive down charges for temporary 
accommodation.  All existing providers have been informed of the new Housing 
Benefit Regulations effective from 2010.  They have also been advised of the 
Council’s intention to tender and the need for them to submit a competitive bid in 
view of the new regulations.   

 
2.5 Given the many initiatives being explored to reduce the temporary accommodation 

by 2010 and the 3rd party negotiations that will need to take place between 
accommodation providers and individual landlords from whom they lease property, 
it is not possible at this time to predict the financial impact on the budget pressure. 

 
2.6 The tender timetable has been scheduled to achieve a contract start date of 1 April 

2010. The contract, as drafted by the Legal Practice, will be a framework with 
multiple contractors.  The use of multiple contractors will ensure, as far as possible, 
that the Council provides a fast, responsive service to homeless persons.  The 
number of approved contractors will be determined by the tender process. 

 
2.7 We intend to use the open tendering procedure for the procurement of this contract.  

A tender package is being finalised for prospective contractors. 
 
2.8 The estimated timetable is as follows: 

• Tender package completed by 30.10.2009 
• Full OJEU Notice published by 02.11.2009 
• Tender package available for expressions of interest until 15.12.2009 
• Period for requesting clarification until 15.01.2010 
• Return date for tenders 29.01.2010 
• Tender evaluation completed by 15.02.2010 
• Award of contract to be completed by 31.03.2010 

 
2.9 The evaluation criteria to be used are as follows:   
 
 

 Tender Selection Criteria 
 

2.10 The selection criteria which will be used by the Council are shown below, with 
percentage weightings for each criterion.  

Page 75



 
2.11 We will carry out a preliminary evaluation of the essential technical and financial 

elements.   This will establish the viability of candidates and determine whether they 
warrant full evaluation.  
 
 

 Selection Criteria  Percentage 

A Company Information  5 

B Skills & Resources  15 

C Technical ability and information  15 

D Risk Assessment Capability  15 

E Emergency planning ability  10 

F Financial Information  10 

G EMS qualification  10 

H References  15 

I Declaration for signing   5 

 TOTAL – Selection Criteria  100% 

 
 
2.12 Candidates which pass that first evaluation will then have the quality of their bids 

assessed as follows 
 

 Award Criteria  Percentage 

A Quality of homes to be provided  30 

B Quality of the support to be provided to 
homeless persons  30 

C Equality & Diversity policy  20 

D Health & Safety policy  20 

 TOTAL – Award Criteria  100% 

 
2.13 The Award Criteria score will be combined with the prices in a 70% Quality - 30% 

price split to award the final contract.  We expect to award the contract to all those 
who achieve over 70% 

 
3 Financial Issues 
 
3.1 The service provides a statutory function as part of the Council’s homelessness 

strategy. In providing this type of accommodation the Council incurs the rental cost 
of renting through the private sector and finances this through rental charges to the 
homeless families placed in this type of accommodation, this charge is often funded 

Page 76



by eligible housing benefits, there is however a shortfall in certain individual 
households circumstances.     

 
3.2 The service is projected to pay £8.3m to landlords in 2009/10 for accommodation 

rented to provide private sector license. This is based on 622 properties currently in 
use reducing to 590 by 31st March 2010. 

 
3.3 Any actions to drive down numbers in PSL during this financial year would have an 

adverse impact on income collection for 09/10. 
 
4 Links to Corporate and other Plans and Strategies  
 
4.1 The Homelessness and Advice Service Improvement Plan 2009/ 2010 incorporates 

the need to ensure that an E.U. compliant contract is negotiated under Action 
Number HA41. 

 
4.2 This feeds into Objectives 2 and 3 of the Housing Services Service Plan - (2) 

Sustainable medium term financial strategies and (3) Knowing and understanding 
our customers and ensuring they are integral to service design and decision. 

 
5 Consultees 
 
5.1 The following were consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 Councillors: 
 Councillor Phillip Waker, Cabinet Member for Housing 
  
 Chief Executive’s: 
 Sharon Roots, Corporate Risk Manager 
 
 Customer Services: 
 David Woods, Corporate Director of Customer Services 
 Stephen Clarke Divisional Director of Housing 
 Annette Cardy, Group Manager, Housing Benefit 
 Maryam Collard, Procurement Manager - Housing Services 
 Doug Bannister, Accommodation Services Manager 
  
 Resources: 
 Tracie Evans, Divisional Director of Finance (interim) 
 Tony McNamara, Interim Group Manager Housing Services Finance  
 Yinka Owa, Partner  Procurement, Contracts and Property 
 Ben McMahon, Contracts Locum Lawyer  
 Paul Ansell, Corporate Procurement Officer 
  
 Adult and Community Services: 
 James Oaten, Group Manager, Equalities and Diversity 
 Christopher Pelham, Acting Head of Safeguarding Rights 
  
6 Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 

o Report to Executive 8 August 2005 
o Previous Tender Package 
o Minutes from Tender Planning Day 24 July 2009 

 
7 List of appendices: None 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE 
 

3 November 2009 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
Title: Debt Write-Offs  July 2009 to September 2009   
(2nd Quarter) 
 

For Information 
 

Summary:  
 
Barking and Dagenham Direct is made up of a number of service areas.  Two of these 
(Income and Collection and Rents and Benefits sections), are linked to the billing, 
collection and recovery of the vast majority of debts that fall due to be paid to the Council 
for chargeable services and statutory levies such as Council Tax and Business Rates. 
 
The value and type of debts written-off as uncollectible within these two sections must be 
reported to the Executive on a quarterly basis in line with the Council’s financial 
regulations.  This report for the financial year 2009/10 provides a summary of debts 
written-off for Q2 i.e. July to September 2009 shown in table 5 of Appendix A.  In total 
£1,089k of debts to date have been written-off for the 2009/10 year for Q2 from July to 30 
September 2009. The level of debt written off in 2009-10 for Q1 and Q2 has been 
increased through a more proactive approach to writing off historic Council Tax debt and a 
large single NDR debt which is irrecoverable.    
 
Wards Affected: None. 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
The Executive is asked to note the debt write-offs for the 2nd quarter of 2009/10 as 
detailed in the report and that a number of these debts will be publicised in accordance 
with the policy agreed by Minute 69 (6 November 2007). 
 
Reason(s) 
 
As a matter of good financial practice and to accord with the Council’s Financial Rules. 
 
Implications: 
 
Legal: 
The write of debts of the sums proposed in the report requires a decision of the Executive.  
It was decided at the Executive’s meeting of 6 November 2007 to publish the names of 
debtors whose debts have been written off subject to certain exceptions set out in the 
report.  The publicising of the names of debtors constitutes processing of their personal 
data under Data Protection Act 1998 (DPA). In order to process i.e. publish this 
information lawfully the legislation sets out a number of requirements the most pertinent 
being that processing must be fair, lawful that any one of the permissible grounds listed in 
schedule 2 DPA be found.  
 
The relevant ground in schedule 2 DPA to the publication of debtor names is that ‘the 
processing is necessary for the purposes of legitimate interests pursued by the data 
controller or by the third party or parties to whom the data are disclosed, except where the 

AGENDA ITEM 8

Page 79



processing is unwarranted in any particular case by reason of prejudice to the rights and 
freedoms or legitimate interests of the data subject’.  This means that the Council may 
lawfully publish the data on the basis that it is thereby pursuing some legitimate interest.  
One possible interest through publication may be the identification of named debtors who 
the Council could then pursue to recover the debt.  The Council must also be satisfied that 
no prejudice to the rights and freedoms of the data subjects (named debtors) would be 
occasioned by the publication. The Legal Partner has not seen any basis for suggesting 
such prejudice would be occasioned.  If any individual had concern as to publication of 
their details they could raise objection with the Council who could then revisit the issue in 
the light of the legal considerations here outlined. 
 
It is not suggested that the debtors named have committed any offence in which case the 
data would be ‘sensitive’ personal data requiring an further additional ground form 
schedule 3 to be also identified.  This aspect can thus be discounted. 
 
The sums being written-off in the report are quite substantial and Councillors will be 
concerned as to what efforts are being made to recover debts before they are written-off.  
The Legal Partner for Corporate Law issues is liaising with the relevant Head of Service to 
review existing mechanisms for debt recovery and further to canvass options to make 
recovery more effective. 
 
Financial 
All debts written-off, will have been provided for within the Council’s Bad Debt Provision 
and as such there should be no specific financial implications.  However, there is the 
possibility that unforeseen and unplanned additional write-offs occur, which lead to the 
value of debts written-off in any year, exceeding the agreed bad debt provision. 
 
Where this is likely to happen, this quarterly report will act as an early warning system and 
will enable additional control measure to be agreed and taken, to either bring the situation 
back under control, or to make appropriate adjustments to the bad debt provision. 
 
Contractual 
No specific implications. 
 
Risk Management 
No specific implications save that of this report acting as an early warning system to any 
problems in the area of write-offs. 
 
Staffing  
No specific implications. 
 
Customer Impact 
No specific implications. 
 
Crime and Disorder 
No specific implications. 
 
Property / Assets 
No specific implications. 
 
Options Appraisal 
Not applicable 

Page 80



Head of Service: 
Abimbola Odunsi 
 

Title: 
Head of Barking and 
Dagenham Direct 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2505 
Fax: 020 8227 2574 
E-mail: abimbola.odunsi@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

Report Author: 
Norman Lockie  

Title: 
Acting Group Manager 
(Income and Collection) 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 8602 
Fax: 020 8227 2574 
E-mail: Norman.lockie@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
1.  Introduction and Background 
 
1.1 The Income and Collection section and the Rents and Benefits Sections are 

responsible for the collection of the vast majority of debts falling due to the Council 
by way of statutory levies and chargeable services.  Whilst measures are taken to 
collect all debts and levies due, it is invariably the case that some debts will remain 
unpaid, even after concerted efforts have been made to collect them.  

 
1.2 In order that the Council can take proper account of debts that will actually be paid 
 and also take account of debts that are unlikely to be paid, the writing off of 
 uncollectible debts are carried out on a regular basis.  This way the Council is able 
 to take account of just those debts that it knows will be paid, whilst making some 
 provision within its accounts for debts that are unlikely to be paid. 
 
2. Policy for write-off of irrecoverable debts and unclaimed credits 
 
2.1 The processes and procedures in place for managing and recording debts written-

off are governed by the Council’s write-off policy.  The purpose of the policy is to 
 establish a framework to regulate the write-off of irrecoverable debts and long 
 standing unallocated and unclaimed credits. 

 
2.2 Adherence to this policy will ensure that there is always consistency and probity 
 adopted in the procedures of debt and credit write-offs and that best practice is 
 followed in: 
 

• Debt collection and recovery 
• Accountancy code of practice 
• Audit controls 

 
3. Authorisation to write-off debts 
 
3.1 Authority to write-off debts and credits is delegated to the Chief Financial Officer by 
 the Council’s Constitution.  Further delegation is made via the constitution and is 
 specified below: 
 

• Up to £2,000 Group Managers  
• £2,000.001 to £10,000 Head of Barking and Dagenham Direct 
• Over £10,000 Corporate Director of Customer Services or the 

Divisional Director of  Corporate Finance 

Page 81



 
3.2 These authorisation levels are strictly adhered to for all write offs. 
 
4. Current Position 
 
4.1 The net value of debts written-off for the first quarter (Q1) of 2009/10 (i.e. April 2009 

– June 2009) was £ 279,212 as shown in table 4 of Appendix A.  
 

4.2 The net value of debts written-off for the second quarter (Q2) of 2009/10 (i.e. July 
2009 – September 2009) was £ 1,089,602 as shown in table 5 of Appendix A. 
 

4.3  The total debt write-off for 2009/10 now stands at £1,368,814. 
 
5. Points to note from debt write-off tables (Appendix A) 
 
5.1 Council Tax and Business Rates are both statutory debts and for the most part, 
 regular monthly write-offs take place.   
 
5.2 General Income debts relate to debts raised for chargeable services that the 
 Council either provides as a statutory duty or as a service where no other providers 
 are available to provide a similar service. 
 
5.3 Home Care and Residential Care debts are also dealt with within the General 

Income section and are shown separately. 
 
5.4 Housing Benefit overpayment debts written-off relate to relevant adjustments in this 

area. 
 
5.5 Former tenant arrears relate to previous occupation of rented Council housing. 
 
6. Publication of individual details of debts written-off 
 
6.1 A number of Authorities publicise the details (names, addresses etc.), of residents 

who have had debts written-off.  In the vast majority of cases, these debts have 
been written-off where the debtor has absconded. 

 
6.2 The Executive agreed in November 2007 (Minute 69, 6 November 2007) that a list 

showing the details of debtors, who have had debts written-off, would be attached 
to this report.  A list has been attached at Appendix B.  The list has been limited to 
the top ten debts only 

 
6.3 As outlined within recommendation 2 above, the Executive is asked to consider the 
 publication of this list of debtors locally (e.g. within The News etc.). 
 
6.4 As was previously outlined within the 6 November 2007 Executive report, it was 
 recommended that the following types of debt write-offs are excluded from this 
 publicised list: 

Page 82



 
 (a) Debts that have been written-off following a corporate complaint being  
  upheld 
 
 (b) Debts that have been written-off due to the debtor falling within one of the  
  many vulnerable groups (e.g. elderly, disabled, infirm etc.) 
 
 (c) Where the original debt was raised in error 
 
 (d) Where debts have been written-off, but no legal action has been taken to  
  prove that the debt was legally and properly due 
 
 (e) Where the debt has been written-off following bankruptcy or insolvency  
  action (the majority of these cases will be individually publicised) 
 
6.5 The exclusion of the category of debts listed above will eliminate the possibility of 

any unnecessary and potentially costly legal challenges from debtors, who take 
issue with their details being publicised. It is intended that where the details or 
whereabouts of debtors become known following publication, those debtors will be 
pursued as far as is possible, to secure full payment of the debt. 

 
6.6 The list provided at Appendix B does not include any debts or debtors that fall 

within categories a-e above, so the list as it stands can be publicised after the 
removal of date of birth and national insurance number details.  

 
6.7 Debts that are written off are sometimes publicised and this serves a public interest 

as it provides an opportunity for an interested member of the public to raise any 
concerns about the debt(s), it may lead to the identification of named debtors who in 
turn can be pursued for sums owing.  The act of publicising may also serve as a 
deterrent against deliberate non payment of debts by others in the local authority’s 
area. 

 
7. Ongoing debt recovery and tracing work 
 
7.1 It should be noted that debt recovery and tracing work is an ongoing activity within 

the Income and Collection and Rents and Benefits section.  Some form of tracing 
work continues on debts even after the debt has been written-off.  We have a 
number of management tools to find debtors, including national systems such as 
Experian. In many cases, tracing and follow-up work can continue for up to a year 
after the debt has been written-off (e.g. in the case of higher debts) and debtors 
have been known to resurface up to five years after a debt has been written-off. 

 
7.2 Where debtors are located either by ourselves or other departments, for example           

often Tenancy audit find debtors, the section who owns the debt is advised and the 
recovery process can be resumed. The debt is often written back on so that legal 
action  can commence or be restarted from where it was left. 

 
7.3 The Revenues and Benefits write-off policy determines the requirements to be met 

before a debt can be written-off. In most cases, a debt will be written-off where a 
debtor has absconded and despite extensive attempts they cannot be traced. In 
these circumstances the debt can be resurrected but the timescales are unknown 
and the courts do not agree with new or continued prosecution depending on what 

Page 83



stage this has reached and the age of the debt.  However, this does prevent certain 
types of enforcement activity and this will be taken at any stage where an 
appropriate court order is held and the debtor’s whereabouts becomes known.    

 
 In cases where the debtor has deceased, details of the debt are sent to the 

Executor to be included in the administration of the estate.  Where there is no 
estate or insufficient funds, the debt will be written off as irrecoverable.  

 
 Where a debtor is declared bankrupt, any person who is jointly and severally liable 

for the debt will be pursued.  The debt is written-off against the bankrupt debtor but 
written back on as the Official Receiver issues a dividend. 

 
 Debts which are remitted by the court cannot be pursued at any future stage so 

there is no further recourse against the debtor in these circumstances.          
 
7.4  Every effort is being made to support customers and minimise debt.  A multi-

disciplinary rent panel has been established to look at each individual case and take 
appropriate action.  A business process re-engineering exercise has been carried 
out on temporary accommodation and income recovery procedures, to ensure the 
appropriate use of resources and efficient streamlined procedures are in place in 
preparation of the implementation of Capita I.T. system.  This system will provide 
robust data for better charging, quicker response time, and improvement in 
customer experience.    
 

8. Consultees 
 

• Councillor Carroll – Lead Member (Revenues and Benefits Portfolio)  
• Tracie Evans -Divisional Director of Corporate Finance 
• Bola Odunsi - Head of Barking and Dagenham Direct 
• Winston Brown – Legal Partner and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
• Annette Cardy  - Group Manager (Benefits and Service Development ) 
• Steve Whitelock – Finance Group Manager (Adult and Community Service) 
• Lee Russell – Finance Group Manager (Resources) 
• Shenis Hassan – Finance Group Manager (Children Services) 
• Tony McNamara – Group Manager (Customer Services, Finance) 
• Mary Olawale –Asst Group manager (Customer Services, Finance) 

 
9. Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 
 

• Executive Report and Minute 29, 6 November 2007:  “Council Debt Write-offs”, 
     Policy for write-off of irrecoverable debts and unclaimed credits. 
• Income and Collection tracing procedure. 
• Report to Executive dated 25 August 2009 titled “Debt Write-Offs” April 2009 - 

June 2009 (First Quarter). 
 
10. List of Appendicles 
  
 Appendix A – Debts Written-Off 
 Appendix B – Details of Debtors 

Page 84



A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 
D

eb
ts

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f d

ur
in

g 
20

06
/7

 
Ta

bl
e 

1 
  

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
B

en
ef

it 
G

en
er

al
 

In
co

m
e 

D
eb

ts
  

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

  
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
R

es
id

en
tia

l 
C

ar
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

N
N

D
R

 
TO

TA
L 

20
06

/0
7 

 
£7

4,
08

6 
£2

09
,5

71
 

£6
98

,4
23

 
£3

2,
23

4 
£9

8,
60

8 
£1

,9
65

,0
30

 
£8

2,
25

6 
£3

,1
60

,2
08

 
   D

eb
ts

 w
rit

te
n 

of
f d

ur
in

g 
20

07
/8

  
Ta

bl
e 

2 
 

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
B

en
ef

it 
G

en
er

al
 

In
co

m
e 

D
eb

ts
  

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

 
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
R

es
id

en
t

ia
l C

ar
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

N
N

D
R

 
TO

TA
L 

20
07

-8
 

To
ta

ls
 

 
£3

35
,1

94
 

 £
16

5,
41

3 
 £

37
3,

27
5 

 
 £

   
   

   
 - 

 
 £

10
,5

43
  

 £
 6

68
,1

63
  

£1
69

,6
57

  
 £

1,
72

2,
24

5 
 

   D
eb

ts
 w

rit
te

n 
of

f d
ur

in
g 

20
08

/0
9 

Ta
bl

e 
3 

   
   

 

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
B

en
ef

its
 

G
en

er
al

 
In

co
m

e 
D

eb
ts

  

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

 

 
R

en
ts

 
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
R

es
id

en
t

ia
l C

ar
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

N
N

D
R

 
TO

TA
L 

20
08

-9
 

To
ta

ls
 

£4
13

,3
13

 
£1

,1
70

,0
66

 
£6

41
,6

37
   

 
£2

,5
30

 
£6

93
   

   
£1

,6
61

 
£4

35
,0

88
   

£1
06

,6
29

  
£2

,7
71

,6
17

   
 

 Pl
ea

se
 n

ot
e 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

an
d 

R
en

ts
 w

as
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
08

/2
00

9 
to

ta
l. 

 
  

Page 85



 D
eb

ts
 w

rit
te

n 
of

f 2
00

9/
10

 
 Ta

bl
e 

4 
D

eb
ts

 W
rit

te
n 

O
ff 

du
rin

g 
20

09
/1

0 
Q

ua
rt

er
 1

 
 

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
B

en
ef

its
 

G
en

er
al

 
In

co
m

e 
D

eb
ts

 

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

  
R

en
ts

 
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
R

es
id

en
tia

l 
C

ar
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

N
N

D
R

 
TO

TA
L

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£1
0,

02
5.

81
 

£8
,1

79
.3

1 
£2

65
.1

2
  

£8
2.

00
 

£2
6,

62
2.

67
  

£4
5,

17
4.

91

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£4

,0
80

.0
0 

 
£2

8,
73

1.
14

 
  

  
  

 
  

32
,8

11
.1

4

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

£0
.0

0

Apr-09 

To
ta

l 
£1

4,
10

5.
81

 
£8

,1
79

.3
1 

£2
8,

99
6.

26
£0

.0
0

£8
2.

00
 

£2
6,

62
2.

67
£0

.0
0

£7
7.

98
6.

05
U

nd
er

 
£2

k 
£2

,2
93

.8
9 

£2
1,

29
1.

31
 

£2
,5

86
.2

1 
 £

99
4.

10
  

£1
59

.0
0

 
  

£2
7,

32
4.

51

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
  

  £
7,

67
4.

22
 

£2
8,

45
6.

28
 

  
  

  
 

  
£3

6,
13

0.
50

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

£0
.0

0

May-09 

To
ta

l 
£2

,2
93

.8
9 

£2
8,

96
5.

53
 

£3
1,

04
2.

49
£9

94
.1

0
£0

.0
0

£1
59

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£6
3,

45
5.

01
U

nd
er

 
£2

k 
£1

3,
12

5.
79

 
£2

4,
63

2.
82

 
£4

7,
50

9.
46

 
£2

28
.5

2
 

  
£8

5,
49

6.
59

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£7

,4
82

.3
4 

 £
35

,2
33

.4
8 

£9
,5

58
.4

3 
  

  
  

 
  

£5
2,

27
4.

25

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

£0
.0

0

Jun-09 

To
ta

l 
£2

0,
60

8.
13

 
£5

9,
86

6.
30

 
£5

7,
06

7.
89

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£2
28

.5
2

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£1
37

,7
70

.8
4

Q
ua

rt
er

 1
 

To
ta

ls
 

  
£3

7,
00

7.
83

 
£9

7,
01

1.
14

£1
17

,1
06

.6
4

£9
94

.1
0

£8
2.

00
£3

87
.5

2
£2

66
22

.6
7

£0
.0

0
£2

79
,2

11
.9

0

     

Page 86



 Ta
bl

e 
5 

D
eb

ts
 W

rit
te

n 
O

ff 
du

rin
g 

20
09

/1
0 

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 

 

W
rit

e 
O

ffs
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
B

en
ef

its
 

G
en

er
al

 
In

co
m

e 
D

eb
ts

 

Fo
rm

er
 

Te
na

nt
 

A
rr

ea
rs

  
R

en
ts

 
H

om
e 

C
ar

e 
R

es
id

en
tia

l 
C

ar
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

N
N

D
R

 
TO

TA
L

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£1
7,

82
9.

31
 

£3
,8

10
.6

3 
£8

,1
81

.4
9

 
£1

21
,6

45
.9

8
 £

15
05

.2
9 

£1
52

,9
72

.7
0

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£2

,2
26

.1
5 

£7
,2

55
.4

9
£1

7,
07

8.
25

 
  

 
 

£7
3,

24
0.

81
  

£9
9,

80
0.

70

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

 
 £

41
,2

75
.6

9 
  

  
 

 
  

 £
36

7,
95

4.
52

£4
09

,2
30

.2
1

Jul-09 

To
ta

l 
£2

0,
05

5.
46

 
£5

2,
34

1.
81

 
£2

5,
25

9.
74

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£1

94
,8

86
.7

9
£3

69
,4

59
.8

1
£6

62
,0

03
.6

1
U

nd
er

 
£2

k 
£1

1,
87

5.
34

 
 

 
 

 
  

£1
1,

87
5.

34

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
£1

1,
43

7.
49

 
  £

7,
84

0.
34

 
 

  
  

  
 

  
£1

9,
27

7.
83

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

£1
3,

04
5.

30
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
£1

3,
04

5.
30

Aug-09 

To
ta

l 
£3

6,
35

8.
13

 
£7

,8
40

.3
4 

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£4
4,

19
8.

47
 

U
nd

er
 

£2
k 

£1
1,

62
3.

30
 

£8
,6

12
.2

9 
£1

8,
46

5.
68

 
£1

49
,8

64
.9

9
 £

13
,3

17
.9

8 
£1

88
,5

66
.2

6

O
ve

r 
£2

k 
 

 
£5

2,
30

0.
17

 
  

  
  

£6
9,

56
1.

46
 

 £
48

,5
19

.7
0 

£1
21

,8
61

.6
3

O
ve

r 
£1

0k
 

£1
1,

13
4.

48
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
£1

1,
13

4.
48

Sep-09 

To
ta

l 
£2

2,
75

7.
78

 
£8

,6
12

.2
9 

£7
0,

76
5.

85
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£2
19

,4
26

.4
5

£6
1,

83
7.

68
£3

83
40

0.
05

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 

To
ta

ls
 

  
£7

9,
17

1.
37

 
£6

8,
79

4.
44

£9
6,

02
5.

59
£0

.0
0

£0
.0

0
£0

.0
0

£4
14

,3
13

.2
4

£4
31

,2
97

.4
9

£1
08

96
02

.1
3

     

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
 To

p 
10

 d
eb

ts
 w

rit
te

n 
of

f i
n 

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 

 N
A

M
E

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

N
U

M
B

E
R

 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T 

R
E

A
S

O
N

 

 
 

 
 

 
P

al
ac

e 
In

ve
st

 L
td

 
20

02
24

04
 

£3
67

,9
54

.5
2 

N
N

D
R

 
O

ffi
ce

 in
 J

er
se

y,
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
B

oa
rd

 d
ec

is
io

n 
G

ar
ro

ds
 S

he
et

 M
et

al
 

61
23

64
13

 
£2

2,
48

5.
28

 
G

en
er

al
 In

co
m

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

liq
ui

da
te

d 
G

ar
ro

ds
 S

he
et

 M
et

al
 

61
80

42
11

 
£1

8,
79

0.
41

 
G

en
er

al
 In

co
m

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

liq
ui

da
te

d 
M

s 
S

 H
ar

ve
y 

10
45

89
05

5 
£1

3,
04

5.
30

 
H

ou
si

ng
 B

en
ef

it 
H

ea
lth

 re
as

on
s 

M
rs

 D
 R

ic
he

s 
10

19
30

81
8 

£1
1,

13
4.

48
 

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

C
us

to
m

er
 b

an
kr

up
t 

Y
et

un
de

 A
de

pe
ju

 
62

50
27

43
 

£7
,8

40
.3

4 
G

en
er

al
 In

co
m

e 
P

S
L 

bo
ar

d 
ag

re
ed

 to
 w

rit
e-

of
f 

M
r S

ho
rc

oc
k 

71
61

65
78

 
£6

,0
27

.6
2 

R
en

ts
 

U
na

bl
e 

to
 tr

ac
e 

cu
st

om
er

 
M

r R
ay

m
on

d 
A

la
ke

 
86

70
96

58
 

£5
,7

41
.1

7 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
C

us
to

m
er

 m
ad

e 
ba

nk
ru

pt
 

M
r D

av
id

 F
lin

t 
71

40
45

07
 

£5
.2

54
.5

0 
R

en
ts

 
U

na
bl

e 
to

 tr
ac

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

M
r S

 A
m

ar
as

in
gh

e 
71

24
50

48
 

£5
,1

82
.3

3 
R

en
ts

 
U

na
bl

e 
to

 tr
ac

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

   

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2009
	4 Response to Green Paper - 'Shaping the Future of Care Together'
	Response to Green Paper, Shaping the Future of Care Together - Appendix A

	5 Local Development Framework - Residential Extensions and Alterations Draft Supplementary Planning Document
	Local Development Framework - Residential Extensions and Alterations Draft Supplementary Planning Doc - Appendix

	6 2010/11 Local Implementation Plan - Funding Submission
	LIP Funding Submission 2010-11 Detailed Programme - Appendix A

	7 Pre-Tender Report - Procurement and Management of Temporary Accommodation (Private Sector Licensing) for Homeless People
	8 Council Debt Write-Offs -  July 2009 to September 2009 (2nd Quarter)
	Debt write offs report - Appendix A
	Debt write offs report - Appendix B


